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Chairman’s Message
FREHE

I am pleased to present the annual results of China Best Group Holding
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2014 on behalf of the board of directors of the
Company (the “Board”).

In 2014, the business landscape faced by the Group’s existing business
was still full of challenges. Leveraging the consolidation of the existing
business, the development of the trading business, the increase in
return on securities investment and the management of cost control,
the Group recorded a considerably significant improvement in loss for
2014 as compared with that of last year. On the coal business front, the
Group focused on cost control and reduced the sale of loss-making coal
products. As for the freight forwarding business, the Group continued
its cautious and conservative approach. In respect of the securities
investment business, as the investment market sentiment has been
picking up since the second half of 2014, the Group strengthened its
investment in securities and related products, which in turn recorded
a good return. With regard to the trading business, this new business
enabled the Group to have a more diversified business portfolio, which
broadened the revenue base of the Group and made profit contribution.

Since the second half of 2014, the Company has completed a placing
of new shares and an open offer, which in aggregate raised funds of
approximately HK$300 million. By doing so, the Group has strengthened
its financial resources while broadening the shareholder and capital base
of the Company. As mentioned in the circular dated 18 December 2014,
the Company planned to apply the proceeds from the open offer to the
establishment of a company in the PRC, so as to develop the finance
leasing business, and such establishment is still in progress. In addition,
the Company also reviewed from time to time potential merger and
acquisition opportunities, and has made strategic adjustment towards its
principal activities, so as to adapt to challenges of the capital market and
maximize the values for the shareholders.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board, | would like to extend
heartfelt thanks to all management, employees and partners for their
contribution to the development of the Group as well as to shareholders
for their enduring support to the Company. In praise of their support,
the Group will unwaveringly strive for reaping more promising business
performance.

Kuk Peter Z
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEER R DT

Increase/(Decrease)
2014 Vs 2013
2014 2013 HK$'M %
HK$'M HK$'M —E—EH
—EB-mE —T—=F ZE-=FER(TK)
BEAT BEBIT BEAT %

Financial Results Highlight REERE
Turnover = 329.8 190.2 139.6 73
Gross profit (loss) ERMGE) 11.1 (12.2) 23.3 191
Other operating loss (net) Hhgeegsig (F58) (12.5) (63.1) (50.6) (80)
Total expenses T4z (26.6) (27.9) (1.3) (5)
Net loss before tax & RINBRTIIE K FEIE IR 2

non-controlling interests A2 B 18358 (28.0) (103.3) (75.3) (73)
Net loss after tax & KRR IE K FE AR i 5

non-controlling interests %2 8% (17.5) (76.2) (58.7) (77)
Extract of Financial Position B 3 iR S B 4
Total assets BEEMRE 395.8 346.8 49 14
Total liabilities BERE (72.3) (86.9) (14.6) (17)
Net current assets mEBEEFE 250.7 216.0 34.7 16
Bank balances and cash RITEHREIRES 99.8 170.0 (70.2) 41)
Total net assets BEFAMEE 323.5 259.8 63.7 25
OVERVIEW BE

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group’s turnover was
approximately HK$329.8 million, representing an increase of 73% as
compared with HK$190.2 million in last year. The Group recorded a
gross profit of approximately HK$11.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2014, compared with a gross loss of approximately HK$12.2
million in last year. Finally, the net loss for the year attributable to
owners of the Company reached approximately HK$17.5 million,
representing a decrease of 77% as compared with the net loss of
approximately HK$76.2 million in last year. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to (i) additional revenue from its newly commenced trading
business in second half of 2014; (ii) a decrease in gross loss of its coal
business by containing its loss through, among others, cost control and
slowing down the sales and marketing of coal products which were sold
at loss; (iii) fair value gain on trading securities held as at 31 December
2014 and (iv) a decrease in non-recurrent expenses as compared to
the last accounting year, which was attributable by, among others, an
one-off impairment loss of goodwill recognized in the last accounting
year whereas no such impairment was recognized in the year ended 31
December 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEERWR DT

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW
Coal Business

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the turnover of the Group’s
coal business has dropped to approximately HK$9.2 million (2013:
approximately HK$40.6 million) due to the continued decline in demand
for coal products in the PRC market. Nevertheless, by negotiating with
suppliers to achieve a more competitive price of raw coals during the
market downturn, the Group managed to bring down the gross loss
of this business to approximately HK$1.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: approximately HK$14.4 million). Coupled with
the effect of cost control measures, the loss of this business segment
was narrowed to approximately HK$19.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: approximately HK$89.5 million).

Freight forwarding Business

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the turnover of the Group’s
freight forwarding business amounted to approximately HK$5.9 million
(2013: approximately HK$6.7 million). Gross profit of approximately
HK$1.7 million and segment profit of approximately HK$70,000 were
made for the year ended 31 December 2014 (2013: gross profit of
approximately HK$1.8 million and segment profit of approximately
HK$3.3 million). There was no significant change in the Group's strategy
and plan regarding its freight forwarding business. The substantial
decrease in the segment profit is mainly attributable to last year’s one-
off write-back of certain long outstanding payables which has not
happened again this year.

Securities Investment Business

For the year ended 31 December 2014, the turnover of the Group’s
securities investment business amounted to approximately HK$54.0
million (2013: approximately HK$142.8 million). During the year, the
Group recorded a realised loss of approximately HK$5.4 million (2013:
approximately HK$0.3 million) and a net unrealised gain of the listed
securities of approximately HK$8.3 million (2013: net unrealised loss of
approximately HK$5.6 million). For the year ended 31 December 2014,
the Group received dividend income of approximately HK$0.4 million
(2013: approximately HK$0.4 million). As at 31 December 2014, the
Group was holding trading securities of approximately HK$98 million in
value (2013: approximately HK$23.0 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trading Business

The Group commenced its trading business in the second half of 2014
and engaged in trading of goods, including fuel oil, radio system and
electronic appliance. Up to 31 December 2014, the turnover of the
Group's trading business amounted to approximately HK$260.8 million
whereas the gross profit was approximately HK$10.0 million. Leveraged
its business network at Hong Kong and the PRC, the Group recorded a
profit of approximately HK$7.6 million in this segment.

LIQUIDITY AND CASHFLOW RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2014, the equity and net current assets of the Group
amounted to approximately HK$323.5 million (2013: approximately
HK$259.8 million) and HK$250.7 million (2013: approximately
HK$216.0 million) respectively. On the same date, the Group had
bank balances and cash of approximately HK$99.8 million (2013:
approximately HK$170.0 million) and the current ratio was 4.47 (2013:
3.48).

As at 31 December 2014, the gearing ratio of the Group was 0.05
(2013: 0.11). The gearing ratio is measured on the basis of interest
bearing borrowings over total assets. As at 31 December 2014, the
interest bearing borrowings and total assets of the Group amounted to
approximately HK$21.2 million (2013: approximately HK$36.5 million)
and approximately HK$395.8 million (2013: approximately HK$346.8
million) respectively.

The Group maintained a strong cash position. The Group has sufficient
and readily available financial resources for both general working capital
purposes and any feasible acquisition of potential investments which it
may encounter or contemplate in the future.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, none of the Group's securities was
pledged to brokers to secure the margin loan. As at 31 December 2014
and 2013, there were no other significant assets pledged to banks to
secure general banking facilities granted to the Group.
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BEERWR DT

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year, the Group incurred approximately HK$4.2 million as
capital expenditure (2013: approximately HK$13.3 million).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had capital commitments of
approximately HK$2.0 million contracted but not provided mainly in
relation to acquisition of an associate and leasehold improvement costs
(2013: approximately HK$970 million mainly in relation to a proposed
acquisition of controlling interests in two gold mines which was finally
terminated in January 2014).

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

As at 31 December 2014, the Group held available-for-sale investments
of HK$53.1 million (2013: HK$7.5 million) and held for trading
investments of approximately HK$98.0 million (2013: approximately
HK$23.0 million).

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

(@ On 17 September 2014, the Group accepted and agreed to
subscribe for 44,652,107 newly issued ordinary shares of
GBP0.00025 (equivalent to approximately HK$0.00316) each of
China New Energy Limited (“CNEL"), a company incorporated
under the laws of Jersey with limited liability and the shares of
which are listed on the Alternative Investment Market of the
London Stock Exchange, at a total consideration of approximately
GBP595,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$7,500,000) (the
“Subscription”). CNEL, through its wholly owned subsidiary,
provides process technology, engineering designs, plant
manufacturing and operational services in connection with the
production of, inter alia, fuel ethanol, edible ethanol, biobutanol,
bioacetic acid and other chemicals from agricultural plant materials
and waste in the PRC. The Subscription was completed on 29
September 2014. Details of the Subscription are set out in the
Company’s announcements dated 17 September 2014 and 19
September 2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

On 22 September 2014, the Company entered into an
memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum of
Understanding”) with five independent third parties (the
“Vendors”) who collectively own a majority of the issued share
capital of Bobdog Holding Company, a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands (the “Target Company”). Pursuant to
the Memorandum of Understanding, the Company intends to
acquire the issued share capital of the Target Company owned
by the Vendors. Through its wholly owned subsidiary, the Target
Company carries out cartoon and comics-related businesses,
licensing of its comics brand and the sales of children’s clothing
and articles in the PRC. The Company and the Vendors did not
execute or agree to execute any formal legal documents for the
acquisition of the Target Company during the exclusivity period and
accordingly the Memorandum of Understanding had lapsed and
terminated on 22 December 2014. Details of the Memorandum
of Understanding and its expiration are set out in the Company’s
announcements dated 22 September 2014 and 22 December 2014.

On 31 October 2014, the Group disposed of its wholly-owned
subsidiary, Hamford Enterprises Limited which was inactive
throughout the year to an independent third party at cash
consideration of HK$0.55 million, resulting in a gain of HK$53,000.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other material acquisition or

disposal (including the acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and

associated companies) for the year ended 31 December 2014.
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BEEN RO

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES AND USE OF EETHRFBRERR
PROCEEDS

Save as disclosed below, the Company has not conducted any other fund ~ Bx TXIFETE &SN - AR G F R EETEMA
raising activities during the year. SEEH -

Date of

announcement Fund raising activities  Net proceeds  Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
AMEBE REED FHE BAERERZ BEEREAR

29 September 2014  Placing of 486,320,000  Approximately  Investment opportunities that might arise, including ~ Approximately HK$24.90

new shares under HK$85.35 for the venture announced by the Company on million for investment

general mandate million 22 September 2014 in respect of a memorandum in listed securities,
of understanding dated 22 September 2014 approximately HK$1.02
(the “MOU") for a cartoon and comics-related million for settlement
business, licensing of comic brands and sale of of the professional fees
children’s clothing and articles in the PRC (the incurred for the Project
“Project”). However, the MOU expired on 22 and approximately
December 2014 and the Project did not proceed HK$29.70 million for
further. The Board resolved and announced on 30 used as working capital.

December 2014 to change the proposed use of
unutilised proceeds of approximately HK$59.70
million in the following manner:

(i) approximately HK$30 million for other
investment opportunities that may arise from
time to time; and

(ii) the remaining balance of approximately
HK$29.70 million for general working capital.

e uia IR — R #)85,350,000  WREHBIZHERE  AEALARZE-ENT 424,900,000 7T H
A=A 486,320,000/ 7 ST ZHZAER BARR-E-NE A fELHERTE - 4
Azamfise ( [ifssl ) o BRFE 1,020,000% 7C A fE %
BB B MBI - DR E)IE dh A RE B i st dl 2 S
RS R i AIEERTE (T5HE1 ) o il - &% 29,700,000 ¢ F 14
HREERR - A SRR BES
AR GEROETT - EERR-F N+ TA
S HYE RE M E459,700,0009 50K
JiiE ¢ Vadiika

(i) #530,000,000i 70 FIE ARt B 2 HAhfk G b
Rk
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BEER R DT

Actual use of proceeds

BERERAE

Date of

announcement Fund raising activities  Net proceeds  Intended use of proceeds

A B KEEH BNE BEEREAR

10 November 2014 Issue of 1,458,995,422  Approximately  Establishment of the financial leasing business
new shares under open  HK$211.67 through setting up a wholly foreign owned

Approximately HK$100
million utilized in the

offer (the “Open Offer”)  million enterprise (the "WFOE") in the PRC. On 3 Group's securities
February 2015, the Company announced that the investment business.
commencement of the financial leasing business
may be delayed to the second quarter of 2015 and
as such the Company would apply not more than
50% of the proceeds to its securities investment
business during the interim period.

i S YN #211,670,000 BRI ANEB G G (MG RE D M #1100,000,0003 TC A {4
+—A+H (MR ) 817 T VMEREES ME-HEZA=H > AL EHFEFBEER
1,458,995,422 AR B R E AR
il TR > B A R S ERIEF A Z 1 50%

P& U ES e ed T

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group’s monetary assets, loans and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. During the
year, there was no significant fluctuation in the exchange rates of Hong
Kong dollars, Renminbi and US dollars. The Group will take a prudent
approach against any impact arising from the fluctuation in exchange
rates but currently is not engaged in any derivative activities and not
committed to any financial instruments to hedge its balance sheet
exposure.

EMPLOYEE AND HUMAN RESOURCES POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had 44 staff (2013: 34 staff). The
total staff cost incurred for the year ended 31 December 2014 was
approximately HK$13.2 million (2013: approximately HK$7.4 million).
The remuneration of employees was determined with reference to the
market circumstances, the Group’s performance as well as individual
qualification and experience. In accordance with the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), the
staff of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting function have
adequate training programs and budget.
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Pursuant to a share option scheme adopted on 22 May 2012 (the “2012
Share Option Scheme”), the Board may grant options to directors
(including non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors), employees of the Company and any of its subsidiaries or
associated companies, to subscribe for shares of the Company. During
the year, a total of 243,000,000 share option to subscribe for a total
number of 243,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each in the
capital of the Company were granted to the Company’s directors and
employees under the 2012 Share Option Scheme.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The Group was principally engaged in manufacture and sales of coal,
international air and sea freight forwarding and the provision of logistics
services as well as trading of securities and commenced trading of fuel
oil, electronic devices and other commodities in 2014.

Looking forward, the coal sector in the PRC is still in the cyclical
adjustment stage and this business segment of the Group will
inevitably have to face tough market conditions and unprecedented
operating pressure. The Group has prioritized the sale of inventory
of manufactured coal products currently held on hand rather than
increasing its volume by production. Currently, the Group is focusing
on the cost control in this segment and keeping minimal costs incurred
when the production is not required. As part of cost control measures,
the Group is employing temporary production line workers in order to
reduce costs on wages as the workers will only be paid when there is
production. The Board will review the Group’s development strategy and
plan in this segment from time to time.

There has been no significant change in the Group’s strategy and plan
in its freight forwarding business. Following the steady recovery in
the global economy, the freight forwarding industry is expected to be
stabilized and even improved in the long run. However, the Group will
still keep relatively conservative approach in this segment.

The investment market sentiment has been rejuvenated by positive
events such as Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and stable
economic development in the second half of 2014. The Group has been
strengthening its investment in securities and related products and will
keep looking for opportunities of realizing investment gains.

The trading business has become one of the principal businesses of
the Group in the second half of 2014. The Group will work on the
product and customer diversification to minimize the business risks.
The Board expect that it could be able to improve the Group’s business
performance in terms of revenue and profit.

BRE_Z——FRA-+T-_HRHZER
EE([ZE——FERET8]) - &35
RARTLERETFARARRETMAKBA
AN ENRCES(BREFERNTEER
BUFHITES) - EE - URELXAQF
2D e FR - RE T — —FHERET
Z) - A4243,000,0000 BREE R T AR
RIZEEREER  UWRBAAGELRFEGH
243,000,000 % & I E{E0.058 L 2 & i@
% o

BRI

AEEEZEHR/RKBERIFE - BEM
=k EEE REDARBANRESFE
B YR-_T-MOERERRH  BEFRER
Hitrmz BEE

FREARIR - B R SR A B 1A 8 H 1 8 B
B - M ANSR B0t 3755 0 R R 4 ] A o D AR
BETNSREMAARR 2 EER - NEE
BRHERNTFT LHAZERERKRE® -
MIFENEE - BRI - NAEEEF RO
FRANTR ) S N 7R A EE B M A AR RS © F
RERAEBIFERES IR - AREERANIE
SEMAIREIRMES 2 BREERT
A - BEERITE R ANE BN D B2 %
RRHE Kot El -

AEEHETEEXRH R LABIWESE
RE - EEEHEERTER  §EXHE
HgRBERRRT EEEREMEAMXN
= o AW - ARBEE LD B BE RIS AE
RFHIRETE o

R-T-—METFE BEBREARTHE
RETHAHTRETHSRAALELR - &
SE-HEMRKREESMERER - Wi#E
BNEBRREKR I HE -

R-T-—METFF  BEXBAASAEE
TEEH 2  c AREEHINEMRER
ZRENBEBREREERK EFRE
HY o BCERSKEE IR B W ORI T i E
REBZEHRE -



BIEEEZEREMRAT 2014F3K

Management Discussion and Analysis

In order to diversify the business portfolio and broaden the income base
of the Group, the Company intends to apply the proceeds of the Open
Offer for capital injection into the WFOE for the purpose of establishing
a financial leasing business in the PRC, which is expected to commence
business in the second quarter of 2015. Such financial leasing business
includes but not limited to new energy vehicles, their batteries and
charging facilities leasing and medical equipment leasing. The Company
expects the income from the financial leasing business will strengthen
the income base of the Group and intends to develop the financial
leasing business as one of the principal businesses of the Group in the
future.

Leveraging its experience and network in the PRC, the Group will
continue to explore investment opportunities mainly for business
development of the Group in the PRC. The Board is convinced that
it is the fundamental basis on which the Company generates and
preserves value over the longer term and the strategy for delivering the
objectives of the Company. The Board will closely monitor the business
environment with the aim to maximise the returns of the shareholders of
the Company.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2014 (2013: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 20 May 2015 to Friday, 22 May 2015 (both days inclusive),
during which time no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify to be shareholders of the Company to attend, act and vote at
the annual general meeting to be held on 22 May 2015, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 19
May 2015.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board has established the Audit Committee in accordance with
the Listing Rules. The Committee currently comprises Mr. Chan Fong
Kong Francis, Mr. Chen Zhenguo and Mr. Yuan Guangming, the three
independent non-executive directors of the Company. A summary of the
duties and works of the Audit Committee is set out in the “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group's consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2014 in conjunction with
the Company’s external auditor, SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE OF THE
LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has fully
complied with the code provisions (“Code Provisions”) of the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, with
deviation from code provisions A.2.1 (this provision has been complied
since 29 October 2014), A.4.1 and A.6.7. Details of the Company’s
corporate governance are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for maintaining the Group's
internal control system to safeguard shareholders’ investment and for
reviewing the effectiveness of such on an annual basis under Code
Provision C.2.1.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Group strives to attain and maintain high standards of corporate
governance to enhance shareholder value and safeguard shareholder
interests. The Group’s corporate governance principles emphasize
a quality Board, effective internal control and accountability to
shareholders.

The Board believes that good corporate governance practices are
increasingly important for maintaining and promoting shareholder value
and investor confidence.

The CG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules sets out the
principles of good corporate governance (“Principles”) and two levels of
corporate governance practices:

(@) code provisions which listed issuers are expected to comply with or
to give considered reasons for any deviation; and

(b) recommended best practices for guidance only, which listed issuers
are encouraged to comply with or give considered reasons for
deviation.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles, code provisions and certain recommended best practices as
set out in the CG Code.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2014, the Company has
complied with the code provisions set out in the CG Code, save for the
deviations from code provisions A.2.1 (this provision has been complied
since 29 October 2014), A.4.1 and A.6.7 which are explained in the
relevant paragraphs in this report.

The Company will continue to enhance its corporate governance
practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its business and to
review its corporate governance practices from time to time to ensure
they comply with the CG Code and align with the latest developments of
the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All directors should
take decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board sets policy direction and approves strategies/operational plans
to ensure effective functioning and growth of the Company, in the
interests of all shareholders.

Every director shall ensure that he/she carries out his/her duty in
good faith and in compliance with the standards of applicable laws
and regulations, and acts in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTIONS

The Board undertakes responsibility for decision making in major
matters of the Company, including: the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
may involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
directors and other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with a view to
ensuring that Board's procedures and all applicable rules and regulations
are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making
request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the executive directors and the senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the executive directors and the senior
management to discharge its responsibility.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Company and to
the exercising of independent judgment.

The Board currently comprises five executive directors, one non-
executive director and three independent non-executive directors.
Members of the Board are unrelated to one another.

The list of all directors and their biographies are set out under the
and “Biographical Details of
on page 2 and page 34 respectively and in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules

section of “Corporate Information”
Directors”

from time to time. The independent non-executive directors are
expressly identified in all corporate communications pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant to
the guidelines for assessing independence set out in Rule 3.13 and
other requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors to be independent in accordance
with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

All directors, including independent non-executive directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience and skills,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functions. Independent non-executive directors are invited to
serve on the Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees of the
Company.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL
OF DIRECTORS

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid down in the Company’s Bye-laws. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors, monitoring the appointment and succession
planning of directors and assessing the independence of independent
non-executive directors. Details of the Nomination Committee and its
works performed during the year are set out in the “Board Committees”
section below.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the
Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three
years and any new director appointed to fill a causal vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall submit himself for re-election by shareholders
at the first general meeting after appointment.

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

Although the non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific
term, pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all directors of the Company
are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and eligible
for re-election at the annual general meeting, and any new director
appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall submit himself for re-election by
shareholders at the first general meeting after appointment.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Pursuant to requirement in Code provision A.6.1, each newly appointed
director receives a comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on the
first occasion of his appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and that
he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All directors should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. During the year
ended 31 December 2014, all directors have participate in continuous
professional development by attending training courses and/or reference
materials on the topics related to corporate governance and regulations:
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Reading Regulatory
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Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences relevant
to the business or

Updates director’s duties
HEERESRES
MEEERE BENERERE
ZBRFER mHe &8
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman) ZRErE(BIEE)
(Appointed on 5 September 2014) (R=ZFE—mFNAAA
EZ(T) v v
Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer) FBERE LA (FTHUAER)
(Appointed on 29 October 2014) (RZZE—MFE+HA=ZTNA
BEE) v v
Mr. Yin Shibo (Appointed on 16 July 2014) FHOREE(R T —MF
A+ NBERT) v v
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (Appointed on BEXREE(R T —MF
16 October 2014) TA+TRAEZE) v v
Mr. Wang lian (Appointed on FEEE(RZZE—WF
16 October 2014) TATSBEZEE) v v
Mr. Du Chunyu (Resigned on MEREE(RZZT—WF
5 September 2014) NARHEHT) v v
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Kuk Peter Z (Chairman) (Appointed as T EE(ERE)(RZFE—TF
Executive Director on 16 July 2014 and + AT NAEZLRHITE
re-designated as Non-Executive Director on ERR-_FE—FNAAH
5 September 2014) FERHHTESE) v
Mr. Huang Bogi (Re-designated as AR A (R ZE—4F
Non-Executive Director on 16 July 2014 and ~ + H+ N HFHLAIEHT7E
resigned on 16 October 2014) ERRZF—EL+H+~
HE#HE) v
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUFEHTES
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRI R S (R = F— Y F
(Appointed on 5 September 2014) NWAHAEZT) 4
Mr. Chen Zhenguo PR IR B 5L A (R = F— g 4F
(Appointed on 29 October 2014) +TAZFNAEZF) 4
Mr. Yuan Guangming RAREER-_F—F
(Appointed on 16 October 2014) +AFNHEZE) 4
Mr. Zhou Mingchi BB S A (R = F—
(Resigned on 29 October 2014) +AZF+NAFHE) v
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel BEMELZ L (R=FE—TF
(Resigned on 5 September 2014) NH B HEHE) v
Mr. Zhang Liang Ren (R =F—yEF
(Resigned on 16 October 2014) + A+ NHEHAE) v
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MEETINGS
Number Of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, regular Board meetings were held for reviewing and
approving the financial and operating performance, and considering
and approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.
Most important resolutions agreed in Board meetings were made by
all directors including both executive and independent non-executive
directors.

No Risk Management Committee meeting was held for the year ended
31 December 2014.

The attendance records of each director at the meetings of the
shareholders, the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee during the year are set out
below:

23
ERBEHEFHFELHF

TR EFREF|TOITEHR - AaE Rt
ERRBZ M RAEERI - WE R RALME
ARFZERRBEBK EEREELE
EXRERRZHEALBES(BENT
FBMIFITES DL -

ERERZEERNBE_Z-HFE+_H
=+ BILEFEIERITEE

FR BEFRABRRAE  EFR  Fitx
B FMWEZEEhREZEEFea M
A FERCERIMT

Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHE/GERLEZER
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee
EEpg BR EER EiZE8 FMzES REZEE
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Yang (Deputy ZHEE(GERE) Not Applicable 6/6  Not Applicable 22 22

Chairman) (Appointed (R=F—WENLALH TE TiEH

on 5 September 2014) EBZA)

Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief TEERLE(TTHAER) Not Applicable

Executive Officer) (R=ZF—mFE+H TR
(Appointed ZTHAEZHF)
on 29 October 2014)

Mr. Yin Shibo FHREE(R=F—HF  Not Applicable
(Appointed tATNAEZHF) TE

on 16 July 2014)

Mr. Tang Hon Kwo HEXEE(R=F—MHF  Not Applicable

(Appointed on FATNAEZ() TiE
16 October 2014)

Mr. Wang Jian ITREE(R-F—mF Not Applicable
(Appointed on THTNAEZ() TE

16 October 2014)

2/3 Not Applicable

4/4 Not Applicable

4/4  Not Applicable

Not Applicable  Not Applicable

ek TEm TEA
9/9  Not Applicable 212 212
TER

Not Applicable
TEA

Not Applicable

TER am

Not Applicable
TEH

Not Applicable

TEH TER
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Meetings Attended/Eligible to Attend

BHE/GEREEZEE
Audit Remuneration Nomination

Name of Directors Shareholders Board Committee Committee Committee

BN BR 2R B EEE FMZES REZEE

Mr. Du Chunyu (Resigned ~ HEMGE (R =F—HF 0N 7/8  Not Applicable 23 23
on 5 September 2014) NABAFHE) TiEA

Non-Executive Directors FH{TES

Mr. Kuk Peter Z (Chairman)  #hi5 %4 (/&) Not Applicable 6/9  Not Applicable 171 11
(Appointed as Executive (R-FE—PF+ 1 EN e i
Director on 16 July 2014 HEZ (L A#TEERR
and re-designated as Non-  —ZE—[04 /1 H 7 H1F
Executive Director on 5 BHNTEE)

September 2014)

Mr. Huang Bogi (Re- BRBEER=FE—AF 171 910 Not Applicable 22 22
designated as Non- +tATANHBERERT TER
Executive Director on EERR-_F—WFETH
16 July 2014 and resigned /¥ HEHF)
on 16 October 2014)

Independent Non- BYHBTES
Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Fong Kong BAHBILE(R=F—/HF  NotApplicable 5/6  Not Applicable 22 22
Francis (Appointedon 5 /LA HEZ(T) TER TiEm
September 2014)

Mr. Chen Zhenguo BIRE LA (W -F—/MF  Not Applicable 3/3  Not Applicable  Not Applicable  Not Applicable
(Appointed FAZTNBEZHF) TEm T TER TE
on 29 October 2014)

Mr. Yuan Guangming REBEAE (K ZF—IF  Not Applicable 4/4  Not Applicable il 7n
(Appointed FAFTNAEZ() TER TEA
on 16 October 2014)

Mr. Zhou Mingchi (Resigned  [EIRE M 58 4 (R = F— I 4F 0/1 10/11 212 4/5 4/5
on 29 October 2014) FA=+ N AEHE)

Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel S L+ (R -F—/mF ”n 8/8 212 3/3 33
(Resigned on NAZAEHT)

5 September 2014)
Mr. Zhang Liang (Resigned SRR L4 (R =T —MF+ 0N 8/10 22 2/4 2/4

on 16 October 2014) A+NAET)




22

China Best Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2014

Corporate Governance Report

AN g /s E
1 E/m#&%

Under Code Provision A.6.7 of the CG Code, the independent non-
executive directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of the views
of shareholders. Due to their various work commitments, one executive
director and two independent non-executive directors of the Company
were unable to attend the annual general meeting held on 30 May
2014.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Annual meeting schedules and draft agenda of each meeting are
normally made available to directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at least 14
days before the meetings. For other Board and committee meetings,
reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all directors at least 3 days before each Board
meeting or committee meeting to keep the directors apprised of the
latest developments and financial position of the Company and to
enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each director
also have separate and independent access to the senior management
whenever necessary.

The Chairman and the Company Secretary attend almost all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on business developments, financial and accounting
matters, statutory compliance, corporate governance and other major
aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are normally
circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable period of time
after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’ inspection.

According to the current Board practice, any material transaction, which
involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder or a director,
will be considered and dealt with by the Board at a duly convened Board
meeting.

The Company’s Bye-laws also contain provisions requiring directors to
abstain from voting (nor be counted in the quorum) at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their associates
have a material interest.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and chief executive should be clearly established and set out in writing.
Mr. Huang Bogi was the Chairman of the Board during the period from
1 January 2014 to 15 July 2014. Since 16 July 2014, Mr. Kuk Peter Z has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Board. Before Mr. Li Xiaolong
joining the Board on 29 October 2014, the Company did not have such
title as the chief executive officer as the Board believed that the existing
structure was conducive to strong and consistent leadership, enabling
the Company to make and implement decisions promptly and efficiently.

To meet the Company’s strategic development, Mr. Li Xiaolong was
appointed as the chief executive officer on 29 October 2014. Since then,
the Company has met the requirement under Code Provision A.2.1 of
the CG Code.

The role of the Chairman was performed by Mr. Kuk Peter Z, who
provided leadership for the Board and was responsible for chairing
meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring that all
major and appropriate issues were discussed by the Board in a timely
and constructive manner. He was also responsible for the strategic
management of the Group and for formulating the Group’s overall
corporate direction and focus.

The role of chief executive officer was performed by Mr. Li Xiaolong,
who was responsible for the overall management and operations of the
Group. He was also responsible for running the businesses of the Group
and implementing the Group’s strategic plans and business goals.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established four committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of
the Company’s affairs. All Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference. Save for the Risk
Management Committee, the terms of reference of the other Board
committees are made available to shareholders on the websites of
the Stock Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.cbgroup.com.hk) respectively.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

L

B

SFEE

The Audit Committee comprises the following independent non- E:fEE@HmIA NEY IFRITESHERK
executive directors.
From From From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 5 September 16 October 29 October
2014 to 2014 to 2014 to 2014 to 2014 to 2014 to
5 September 16 October 29 October date of this date of date of
2014 2014 2014 report this report this report
H-Z-[E H-T-RE  H-F-RF
-A-H -A-H -A-H m-Z-mE A-E-RE  A-E-RF
E-E-QE  E-E-UE 0 E-E-MF hATH TAtXE  tA=tnB
hBEA TATAB  tAZtAB  EAEEEE  EAHEEH  ZAEERY
Mr. ChanFong Kong T4 4 v
Francis
Mr. Chen Zhenguo RIRE 4 v
Mr. Yuan Guangming  RLEREAE v
Mr. Zhou Mingchi B s v
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel & &+ v
Mr. Zhang Liang i v
Among the committee members, one of them possesses the WEZE@fkEd Edh—LKEEHEAFE

appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. None of the members of the Audit Committee is
a former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a)

To review the financial statements and reports and consider any
significant or unusual items raised by the staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, internal auditor (if
any) or external auditors before submission to the Board;

To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and
terms of engagement, their independence and objectivity, and
make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system and associated procedures.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year to review the
half-yearly and annual financial results and reports, financial reporting
and compliance procedures, report on the Company’s internal control
and risk management review and processes and the re-appointment of
the external auditors.

XERASTAERMBEEERER - HER
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B REEZEIERBERENATEE
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IHH

SBZEMETZIE REZWER
BRI - B R EE MR EBINE
REED 2 AR - RS - AR R
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The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under the T EZES T HEIZHBIANARE Y (€%
section “Meetings” in this report. —EIA o

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2014 BHEZESLEZHAATNHE _—_ZT—INF

have been reviewed by the Audit Committee. +Z A=+ —HIEFEZ2FESE -
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RBREEZES
The Nomination Committee comprises the following directors. REAEZEGHRTIIESRMERX -
From From From From From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 16July  5September 16 October 29 October
21410 2014t0 201410 201410 2014 to 2014 to 201410 2014t0
16July  5September 16 October 29 October 9 September date of date of date of
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 thisreport  thisreport this report

H-R-BE  BM-E-DE ACR-BE BCE-DE HCR-BE
-A-H -A-H -A-H -A-B  tAtAE HIE-DE H-R-BE BIE-DE
ECR-PE  FC8-DBE ECR-ME ECR-BE ECR-QF ARER TATAE TAZ1AR
tATAR ARER tAtAR  tAZtAA MARE  EAHERH  EAELEAR  ERHE0H

Executive Directors #i7Es

Mr. Li Yang ShkE v
Mr. Yin Shibo ARLE v
Non-Executive Directors ~ #&78%

Mr. Kuk Peter Z B v

Mr. Huang Bog ERMRE v

Independent Non-Executive BIFTEZ

Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis B I5E 4 v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo REALE v
Mr. Yuan Guangming RAREE v
Mr. Zhou Mingchi JELihepita v
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel EMERT v

M. Zhang Liang ik 4
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The main duties of the Nomination Committee include the following:

e  To review the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e To develop and formulate relevant procedures for nomination and
appointment of directors and senior management;

e  To identify suitable candidates for appointment as directors and
senior management;

e  To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for directors and senior
management; and

e  To assess the independence of the independent non-executive
directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships and senior management
by making reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to carry
out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee held five meetings during the year to review
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board and made
recommendations to the Board in accordance with the Nomination
Committee’s written terms of reference. The Nomination Committee
considers that board appointments are based on merit and candidates
are considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the
benefits of diversity on the Board, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.

In accordance with the clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, all
Directors of the Company will be subject to the re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Board recommended the re-appointment of the directors standing
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE SMEES
The Remuneration Committee comprises the following directors. YMEESH NYESHEMK -
From From From From From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 16July  5September 16 October 29 October
2014t0 2014t0 2014t0 2014t0 2014 to 2014 t0 201410 2014t0
16July  5September 16 October 29 October 9 September date of date of date of
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 thisreport  thisreport this report

B-E-mE A-E-ME BH-F-ME H-E-BE A-E-MF
-A-H -A-8 -A-8 -f-B  tAtAR AZE-RmE  BoE-RE HCE-ME
E-g-ME Z2-E-ME  ECE-BE ECE-ME ESE-ME ABER  tAt~E  TR=thH
tAtxE ARER tAtAE tAZTAB ABRE  EABERY EZAHEAS EABERY

Executive Directors YTES

Mr. Li Yang Zhnk v
M. Yin Shibo FicE v
Mr. Du Chunyu HERLE v
Non-Executive Directors ~ #1785
M. Kuk Peter Z #E%E v
M. Huang Bog ERELE v
Independent Non- BUkgES
Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BRI %4 v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo RRELE v
Mr. Yuan Guangming RABRE v
Mr. Zhou Mingchi JEL i v
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel  EIZ+ v

Mr. Zhang Liang FRik 4
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The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration policy
and structure and remuneration packages of the executive directors
and the senior management. The Remuneration Committee is also
responsible for establishing transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no director or
any of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
which remuneration will be determined by reference to the individual
performance and the operating results of the Company as well as the
market conditions and practice.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets for reviewing the
remuneration policy and structure and determination or making
recommendation of the annual remuneration packages of the executive
directors and the senior management and other related matters
when needs arise. The Human Resources Division is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consult the Chairman and/or the
Board about these recommendations on remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the year to
review the remuneration packages of the directors and the senior
management and made recommendation to the Board in accordance
with the Remuneration Committee’s written terms of reference.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Particulars of the directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 12(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the senior management for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013 are set out in note 12(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.
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RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee comprises the following directors.

AN S E
1E ﬁ?ﬂ:#&ﬁ%

BREEZESS
RAREREEGH T EFMAMR -

From From From From From From From From
1 January 1 January 1 January 1 January 16July  5September 16 October 29 October
2014 t0 2014 t0 2014t0 2014 to 2014 to 2014 to 2014 to 2014t0
16July  5September 16 October 29 October 9 September date of date of date of
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 thisreport  thisreport this report
H-2-0F A-3-BE A-Z-NE  H-E-0F  AZE-0F
-R-A -R-R -A-H -A-H tRAtRA  H-E-RME A-Z-ME A-E-BF
EZE-QE  B2-%-mE ZCR-ME ECE-QBE ECR-RF ARER tATAR  tAZThR
tAtAA AREE  tAtAB  tAZTAA AAAR  ZARERE  ZAHERY  ERBERH
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Yang ks v
Mr. Yin Shibo ARLE v
Mr. Du Chunyu HERLE v
Non-Executive Directors ~ F#1{TE%
Mr. Kuk Peter Z BEEE v
Mr. Huang Bogi AL v
Independent BUksTEs
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis T8l %4 v
Mr. Chen Zhenguo RiRELE v
Mr. Yuan Guangming BB v
Mr. Zhou Mingchi el hepita v
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel EMELT v
Mr. Zhang Liang Fmik v

The Risk Management Committee primarily focuses on raising the level
of management awareness of, and accountability for the business risks
faced by the Group's business operations. In meeting its responsibilities,
the Risk Management Committee seeks to put in place policies and
procedures to provide a framework for identification and management
of risks.

The Risk Management Committee normally meets for prioritizing and
accelerating those risk management strategies that are critical to the
advancement of the Group’s objectives and ensuring that sufficient
resources and appropriate level of support from the management are
allocated. The Risk Management Committee shall consult the Chairman
and/or the senior management of the Company about the effectiveness
of their recommendations and report to the Board any risks relating to
material transactions in the ordinary course of business and unusual
transactions beyond the scope of the principal business activities of the
Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out in the terms of reference equivalent to Code Provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code. During the year, the policies of the corporate governance
of the Company were reviewed by the Board in the Board meetings.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has been made on all directors and
the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2014.

The directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial
statements of the Company with a view to ensuring that such financial
statements give a true and fair view and that relevant statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards are complied with.

The management of the Company provides such explanation and
information to the Board so as to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the financial information and position of the Company
which were put to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the

“Independent Auditor’s Report” on page 49.
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An analysis of the remuneration of the Company’s auditors, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited, for the year ended 31 December 2014 is set out as
follows:

AN S E
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BE-P-ME+-A=+—AILEE &
DB AR (F8) a0 B A
BARFEB S STHRIIMT

Fee paid/
payable for
services
rendered
iR
BERKER
ERHER
HK$'000
FET

B RS
R HA R B AR TS
HMEFRIE

Audit services
Interim review services
Other ad-hoc assignments

INTERNAL CONTROLS

Under Code Provision C.2.1, the Board is responsible for maintaining an
adequate internal control system to safeguard shareholders’ investments
and the Company'’s assets, and reviewing the effectiveness of such on an
annual basis.

The internal control system of the Group is designed to facilitate
effective and efficient operations, to ensure reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations, to
identify and manage potential risks and to safeguard assets of the
Group.

During the year, the Board and the Audit Committee had discussed and
reviewed the internal control system and the relevant proposal made by
senior management in order to ensure an adequate and effective system
of internal control. The Board believes that the existing internal control
system is adequate and effective.
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The key elements of the Group’s internal control system include the
following:

o the organizational structure is clearly defined with distinct lines of
authority and control responsibilities;

e a comprehensive financial accounting system has been established
to provide for performance measurement indicators and to ensure
compliance with relevant rules;

o the senior management shall prepare annual plans on financial
reporting, operations and compliance aspects by reference to
potential significant risks;

o unauthorized expenditures and release of confidential information
are strictly prohibited;

o specific approval by executive director prior to commitment is
required for all material matters; and

e the management shall review and evaluate the control process and
monitor any risk factors on a regular basis and report to the Audit
Committee on any findings and measures to address the variances
and identified risks.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of the Company Secretary is held by Mr. Ho Yu. He is
an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. The Company Secretary reported to the
Chairman of the Board from time to time. All Directors have access to
the advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure that board
procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
During the year, Mr. Ho undertook not less than 15 hours of professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors’ understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Group also
recognises the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information which enables shareholders and investors to make
a properly informed investment decision.
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The Company continues to enhance communications and relationships
with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner. Investors may write directly to the
Company at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any
inquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.cbgroup.com.hk, where extensive information and updates
on the Company’s business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other information are
available for public access.

The Board confirmed that, during the year, there were no significant
changes made to the Company’s Bye-laws affecting its operations and
reporting practices.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Under the Company’s Bye-laws, the Board, on the requisition of
shareholders of the Company holding not less than 10% of the paid-
up capital of the Company by sending a written notice to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong, shall convene a special general meeting to address specific
issues of the Company within 21 days from the date of deposit of
written notice. The same requirement and procedure also applies to any
proposal to be tabled at shareholders’ meetings for adoption.

Specific enquiries by shareholders requiring the Board's attention can be
sent in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong.

In addition, the Company maintains contact with its shareholders
through annual general meetings or other general meetings, and
encourages shareholders to attend those meetings.

Notice of general meeting is sent by mail to the registered shareholders
of the Company. Agenda and resolutions are set out in the notice of
general meeting. A proxy form for use at a general meeting is enclosed
with the notice. Shareholders who do not intend or are unable to be
present at the meeting should fill out the form and return the same to
the share registrar and transfer office of the Company, so as to appoint
a representative, another shareholder or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxy.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman), aged 43, obtained a junior college
degree of Electronic Engineering from Shenzhen University. He
completed an EMBA programme and obtained his EMBA from Shenzhen
College of Economics and Management (FYIAEEIRELT). Mr. Li
also completed a master degree programme of the Graduate School
of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences (1 Bt &Rl #7954 F),
majoring in World Economics. Mr. Li has approximately 20 years of
experience in investment activities and business management. Mr. Li
has been a director of Brand Marvel Worldwide Consumer Products
Corporation (TSXV symbol: BMW), a Canadian publicly traded company
on the TSX Venture Exchange since December 2010. He is currently
also assuming senior executive positions in several capital investment or
management companies.

Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer), aged 49, obtained his
bachelor degree in finance from Zhongnan University of Economics (4
48 AE) in July 1990. In July 2001, he obtained his master degree in
accounting from the Central University of Finance and Economics (%R
B¢ KZ8). Mr. Li also completed his doctorate degree in economics from
the Southwestern University of Finance and Economics (75 B & A &)
in 2013. Mr. Li has over 20 years of experience in accounting, finance,
business management and investment activities. Between June 2008 and
April 2010 Mr. Li acted as the deputy general manager, chief financial
officer and company secretary of Aerospace Environmental Engineering
Co., Ltd. (MARIRIZITIZHR2AF]). Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Li was the general manager of the investment department and the
executive assistant to the president of China Aerospace Investment
Holdings Ltd. (MK EZER AR AT and served as supervisor of
Aerospace Science & Technology Finance Co., Ltd. JAARIE B S BER &
£Ra]).

Mr. Yin Shibo, aged 40, obtained a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Guizhou University of Finance and Economics (formerly known
as Guizhou College of Finance and Economics) and a Master degree
in Business and Administration from Wuhan University. Mr. Yin
has approximate 18 years extensive experience in finance industry,
particularly in banking finance, project investment analysis and
corporate finance management. He served at various positions in
Agricultural Bank of China during 1997 to 2008 and was a branch
manager before his leaving. Since 2008, he has devoted himself to
the private equity industry and assumed senior management roles in
several investment companies. Mr. Yin currently is a general manager
of a trading company in the PRC. He has also obtained professional
qualifications in the accountancy and finance in the PRC.
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Mr. Tang Hon Kwo, aged 45, has approximately 20 years of experience
in investment activities and business management. Mr. Tang has also
served since 1998 as director and deputy general manager of a Hong
Kong private company and oversees the operational management and
project investment activities.

Mr. Wang Jian, aged 40, graduated from the department of fine art of
Beijing Normal University. Mr. Wang worked at a renowned automobile
company in the PRC from 1994 t01997. From 2009 to 2012, Mr. Wang
co-found an iron and steel product company in Shenzhen and served
as its legal representative. Since 2012, he has assumed management
positions at several natural resources related companies. He has a
number of years of experience in investment activities and business
management.

Non-executive Director

Mr. Kuk Peter Z. (Chairman), aged 60, graduated from the Dongbei
University of Finance and Economics (formerly known as Liaoning
Institute of Finance and Economics). Mr. Kuk served as the Managing
Director of Investment Banking Division and the Vice Chairman of
China Business of Merrill Lynch (Asia Pacific) Limited and the Managing
Director of Global Banking and Markets (GBM) and the Vice Chairman
of China Region of the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation.
Mr. Kuk was the Chief Strategy Adviser for markets and customers
of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and also served as a special assistant to
the Chief Executive of Greater China. He was a managing partner of
Ernst &Young, responsible for government and public affairs. He has
been appointed as an independent non-executive director of Credit
China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) (Stock Code: 8207) since 7 July 2014. He was also qualified
as a certified public accountant in the PRC.
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis, aged 39, obtained a Bachelor degree
of Commerce, majoring in Accounting and, Finance, from Deakin
University. Mr. Chan has more than 10 years of experience in capital
investment, assurance and consultancy services industry. He served
as a senior in assurance and advisory service team in a renowned
international accounting firm from 2001 to 2005. Since 2005, Mr.
Chan has been a senior consultant at a local consultancy firm in which
apart from business consultancy services, he also involved in corporate
restructuring and fund raising activities in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Mr. Chan attained the Certified Practising Accountant status with CPA
Australia and is currently a director of New Territories General Chamber
of Commerce. He has appointed as independent non-executive director
of Leyou Technologies Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1089) since 1 January 2015.

Mr. Chen Zhenguo, aged 44, obtained his bachelor degree in finance
and insurance from China Institute of Finance and Banking (F & &
BhEPT) in July 1993. He has approximately 17 years of experience
in investment activities and business management. Mr. Chen was
the project manager (investment banking) of United Securities Co.,
Ltd. (Bt A EHBRAR]) between April 1997 and February 2006. He
joined Cybernaut Investment Limited (B{A%43& & AR A F]) between
March 2006 and July 2008 as its vice president (investment). Since
August 2008, Mr. Chen has been the executive director (investment) of
Shanghai Fosun Venture Capital Investment Management Co., Ltd. (=
BEEAIERETIEAMRAA), its parent company Fosun International
Limited was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
0656).

Mr. Yuan Guangming, aged 54, obtained a Bachelor degree from
the department of Chinese studies of Wuhan University. Mr. Yuan has
experience in business investment and management as well as in the
media industry. From 1984 to 2003, he worked for several renowned
television stations and media companies in the PRC. Since 2011, Mr.
Yuan has been assuming senior executive positions in several capital
investment or management companies.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 51 of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year ended 31
December 2014 (2013: Nil).

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2014, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
had no reserves available for distribution to shareholders (2013: Nil).
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yang (Deputy Chairman)
(Appointed on 5 September 2014)
Mr. Li Xiaolong (Chief Executive Officer)
(Appointed on 29 October 2014)
Mr. Yin Shibo
(Appointed on 16 July 2014)
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo
(Appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. Wang Jian (Appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. Du Chunyu (Resigned on 5 September 2014)

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kuk Peter Z (Chairman) (Appointed as Executive Director
on 16 July 2014 and re-designated as Non-Executive Director
on 5 September 2014)

Mr. Huang Bogqi (Re-designated as Non-Executive Director
on 16 July 2014 and resigned on 16 October 2014)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis (Appointed on 5 September 2014)
Mr. Chen Zhenguo
(Appointed on 29 October 2014)
Mr. Yuan Guangming
(Appointed on 16 October 2014)
Mr. Zhou Mingchi
(Resigned on 29 October 2014)
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (Resigned on 5 September 2014)
Mr. Zhang Liang (Resigned on 16 October 2014)

In accordance with the clause 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws, all
Directors of the Company will be subject to the re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is
the period up to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive ~ RNAFTI 2R S LB IEHITESRIE LT
directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule  #RBIE3 13EMEB I MEMBEE 2 EEEDR
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent [k c KA RIR B2 LB IERNTTESIBIE
non-executive directors are still independent. MAT e

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES' BEERTEFRAS I RGOER
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND SHORT POSITIONS RABRMGHZ XA

IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the RZ-ZTE—NME+-_A=+—H BEEKIFE
directors and chief executives and their associates in the shares and {THHABURBEE 7HBHEATARATLRE
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations as  #RE&EE 7 & MIBEIRMH T - EEZHER
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section KN ABRIEZEH KBS EN ([ F 5 L EEE
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") or as otherwise {5 |) E352{&F B 2 S M siiBiE FH AT
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model FEHETHEERX SHWNIZETRIZBHE AN 7]
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies, were — RESZFT 2 M AT ¢

as follows:

Long position in shares of the Company

REQATRG Z2HFR

Percentage of the
issued share capital

Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares of the Company
EARD BB BT

ExgLR =37 IR B 2 RAE 2

Mr. Kuk Peter Z Beneficial owner 120,000,000 4.11%

it BEmEBA

Mr. Yin Shibo Beneficial owner 26,161,600 0.90%

FHLR A BHEAA
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Long position in share options of the Company

RELAFTBREZEFR

Percentage of the

issued share capital

Name of Director Capacity Interest in shares of the Company
EARA S BT

EEpE 13 R R RA&ABE DL

Mr. Li Yang Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

RSk AE EmiE A

Mr. Li Xiaolong Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

FEERESE EmlE A

Mr. Yin Shibo Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

FHE T A E=mBAEA

Mr. Tang Hon Kwo Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

BEXEE EmiB A

Mr. Wang Jian Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

FrEEE EmfEA

Mr. Kuk Peter Z Beneficial owner 24,300,000 0.83%

ik EmlEEA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the directors B FXFEEEN  R-ZZET—NUE+ -8
and chief executives, nor their associates, had any interests or short =+—H ' EERFETHAB SR BEE 2 5
positions in any shares and underlying shares of the Company or any of £ A +AZA A &)k B (F{r] /R B A B 2 F{a] Bx
its associated corporations. HREBRO TP ERERTAERIOAR



SHARE OPTIONS
(a) 2002 Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company on 18 March 2002. The 2002 Share
Option Scheme expired on 17 March 2012. Upon the expiry of the
2002 Share Option Scheme, no further options would be granted
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme but the options granted prior
to such expiry continued to be valid and exercisable in accordance
with the provisions of the 2002 Share Option Scheme. Particulars
of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements of the share options
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme during the year:
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BB

(a)

—EECFEREE

ARG -—EE-_F=A+/\BER
BREFE ([T _FHBRE
gl T _FEREFEN=_Z
——F=—A+tHER FTZE_F
BB EmE - AR R TERE
ZET - FERAERT IR DB
REm BRI E & 2 BB A
MARIBE ST - F RTS8 IEX
1 - —ET - FERETENFBEE
RERE M IEHRER M FE29A ©

THRUE =TT ER R 8 T
RPN 2D -

Surrendered/
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
asat during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price* 1.1.2014 the year the year theyear  31.12.2014*
R=%-D% H-%-mE
-R-f tZR=t-H
RiAH 8 B HALTE FRRH FhfE  FRRE/ R GESINY
Other eligible persons ~ 5.10.2004 5.10.2004 10 5.10.2014 0.3170 5,618,729 - - (5,618,729) -
AR ERAL _3ImE _ZIMETALRE
TRAER ZZ-METALA
26.9.2005 26.9.2005 10 25.9.2015 0.3695 67,649,498 - - - 67,649,498
i 5ik:3 “ERRFAACTRAR
AAZT7A ZZ-RFAAZTEA
20.8.2007 2082007 10 20.8.2017 0.6275 27,194,648 - - - 27,194,648
S ZRRLENAZTHE
NAZTH Z2—tE)\AZTH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 0 7.9.2017 0.6850 13,484,949 - - - 13,484,949
I ZERtENALRE
NAtE “E-LENALH
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 10 28.9.2017 0.7385 4,494,983 - - - 4,494,983
SRRLE CERLEAACTARE
A=A Z2-tFARZTIR
Total 118,442,807 - - (5,618729) 112,824,078
)
* Following the completion of the Open Offer of the Company on 15 January * AN ZABBER - ZE—RE—A+RA

2015, the exercise prices of the share options and the number of shares
falling to be issued under the outstanding share options were adjusted.
Please refer to paragraph (c) below for reference.

TR BB 2 TR B AR RTT A AR
BETETCROBECEIE - F2HT
X(QBIMESZE ©
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(b) 2012 Share Option Scheme

The 2012 Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution on 22 May 2012 (the “Effective Date”). The purposes
of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are to attract and retain the
best available personnel and to provide additional incentives or
rewards to employees, directors, consultants, business associates
and advisers of the Company for their contribution to the Company
and to promote our success. The 2012 Share Option Scheme shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing on the
Effective Date. The terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are in
compliance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

Eligible participants of the 2012 Share Option Scheme include the
following persons:

(a) any employee or proposed employee (whether full time or
part time) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any entity
in which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(b) any directors, non-executive directors (including independent
non-executive directors) of the Company, any of its
subsidiaries or any entity in which any member of the Group
holds any equity interest;

(c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group
or any entity in which any member of the Group holds any
equity interest;

(d) any customer of the Group or any of entity in which any
member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(e) any person or entity that provides research, development or
other technological support to the Group or any entity in
which any member of the Group holds any equity interest;

(f)  any shareholder of or holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member of
the Group holds any equity interest;

(g) any other group or classes of persons or entities from time to
time determined by the Board as having contributed or may
contribute to by way of joint venture, business alliances or
other business arrangements to the development and growth
of the Group; and
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(h) any company wholly owned by one or more person belonging
to any of the above (a) to (g) participants.

The total number of shares of the Company available for issue
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Effective Date. The
maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the options
which may be granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Group (including both
exercised and outstanding options) to each participant (other than
a substantial shareholder, chief executive or director as explained
below) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. Any further grant of
share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a connected person (as defined under
the Listing Rules), are subject to approval by the independent non-
executive directors of the Company (excluding any independent
non-executive director who is the grantee of the options). Where
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any
of their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules)
would result in the Company’s shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options already granted and to be granted (including
options exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person(s) in
the 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
(a) representing in aggregate over 0.10 per cent of the Company’s
shares in issue; and (b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Company’s shares at the date of each grant, in
excess of HK$5 million, such further grant of options is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company in compliance with
the Listing Rules.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted in writing by
a participant within 21 days from the date of offer upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 by the grantee. The exercise
period for the share options granted is determined by the Board,
which period shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
offer.
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an o

amount payable of each share to be subscribed for under
ption in the event of the option being exercised shall be

determined by the Board in its absolute discretion and must be at

least

the higher of:

the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant (which

the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days

0)

must be a business day);
(if)

immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of the shares.

The following table discloses movements of the share options

unde

r the 2012 Share Option Scheme during the year:

fi 1 77 {52 8 P 4B T AR R B A A 7 T R B
WERRNNENSE AHEER2
RWIEEE A THELRAT=ERE
BEE

(i) BORBERERLBEH(LARE
ERRBRXAEBABRERMELZ
Y(g :

iy BOAREEERERLBHATR
EEEHRBIMFARERN
W2 FHRHE &

(i) ROBEE °

TREE T —FRRETE TER
BRNFRAZES :

Surrendered/
Outstanding Granted Exercised Lapsed  Outstanding
as at during during during as at
Date of grant Exercisable period Exercise price* 1.1.2014 the year the year theyear  31.12.2014%
R=%-Df R-2-Df
-A-H TZB=t-H
RiAH s g WA Fhii EAfE FARE/ R GESIY
Directors 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 10 2.11.2015 030 - 145,800,000 - - 145,800,000
EE “RF “R-MET-AZRE
t-A=H “R-RET-ACH
Employees 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 10 2.11.2015 030 - 97,200,000 - - 97,200,000
8 _2-mF “R-MET-AZRE
t-R=8 “T-nEt-fZH
Total - 243,000,000 - - 243,000,000
it

Following the completion of the Open Offer of the Company on 15 January
2015, the exercise prices of the share options and the number of shares
falling to be issued under the outstanding share options were adjusted.
Please refer to paragraph (c) below for reference.

* ARRZ AABER -_T—AF—A+AA
TR BB Z TR E MR ARIT R
B TERTZROBECEIE - F2HT
(OB IAESZE -



(c) Adjustments on outstanding share options

granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2012 Share Option Scheme

On 10 November 2014, the Company announced that it proposed
to raise not less than approximately HK$218.85 million and not
more than approximately HK$245.54 million before expenses by
issuing not less than 1,458,995,422 offer shares and not more than
1,636,907,461 offer shares at the subscription price of HK$0.15
per offer share on the basis of one (1) offer share for every two (2)
existing shares held on the record date and payable in full upon
application.

As a result of the completion of the Open Offer, adjustments were
made to the exercise prices of the share options and the number
of shares falling to be issued under the outstanding share options
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme pursuant to their terms. The adjustments to the
exercise prices and the number of the shares falling to be issued
under the outstanding share options have taken effect from 15
January 2015, the date on which the Open Offer is completed, and
the details of which are as follows:

Before completion of the Open Offer
NERETRA
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() RE-ZEZ_SFRRESEK

—E-CFEREEREZ
RTERREZHR

RZE—WF+—A+H  XRAE
MEZEBENTHBHEEAERQ)
BREEROEZE —(1NREERND 2E
£ URBESREERMN0.15E T
BT 1,458,995,422 I N TR i
1,636,907, 461 [ & KM - £EE T
DA #)218,850,000 % 7T K N B 38 4
245,540,000 0 (MR FEZAT) - BE
RRBRBABRETE ©

MR TR AMEE  SREREZTE
BERBRBE-_ZST-_FEREFENR_-Z
— ZFB R E 2 BRI 2 RITE
IR BIT 2 RMEBEL TR - 17
FERIBIBERITEBREREIT RN
HRZAREPR - T—HE—A+HH
(AHZERKER)EKR  HFBD
T

After completion of the Open Offer
DRRETHE
Adjusted number

45

of shares to be
allotted and issued
upon exercise

Number of shares
to be allotted
and issued upon exercise

of the outstanding of the outstanding
Exercisable period Exercise price share options Adjusted exercise price share options
RTEBRERTRE RTEBRERTHRE
BFRERET BIRERETZ
&S %8 ZBRHHE BRETRE ERERNHE
26.9.2005 t0 25.9.2015 0.3695 67,649,498 0.3396 73,595,889
“EERENAAZTREE
ZE-RFAAZTIR
20.8.2007 to0 20.8.2017 0.6275 27,194,648 0.5768 29,585,058
“EELENAZTHE
ZE—tEAZTH
7.9.2007 t0 7.9.2017 0.6850 13,484,949 0.6297 14,670,276
“EELENALAR
“E—tENALH
28.9.2007 to0 28.9.2017 0.7385 4,494,983 0.6788 4,890,092
ZEELENAZT\RE
“EERAZTNR
3.11.2014 10 2.11.2015 0.3000 243,000,000 0.2758 264,359,700
—Z-RE+-AZRE

“E-RET-AZH
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries,
a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures
of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance, to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND SHORT POSITION IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests and short positions of the
following persons other than the directors or chief executive of the
Company, in the Company’s shares which fall to be disclosed to the
Company pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and which
have been recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO:

BERONEER Z2LH

73 ) o AT 2 A4 P £ 5 R
mATSTEM R - (P A A B A AR A
RS £ Ak A 18R 2 P15 o (AR T

s o

AR RIS ) - AN &) S AR AT Y
BRAABEITEARRESERIHEERESR
BEAEEIEREH

%EﬁiZﬁﬁ%ﬁ&%&ﬁ¢
i

%
i

Z—NFE+-A=+—H  BREARAIE
BBLEREGNEIBCIEBETE 2 ELM
Fracst AT RBAL (W IEESH AR A
FETBAE)RARGRMDF HEERIEE
%&HHTWFIJ%XV*B%Z&%EZ"* AN
NEWBEZERZLAE -

Percentage of
the Company’s
issued share capital

Name Capacity Interest in shares (Note 3)
EARDRE BT
BRAEABD
8 Eg7) 6 25 (MaE3)
Honghu Capital Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 400,000,000 13.71%
Limited (“Honghu")
BREREMRAR([BE]) EnAa A )
Mr. Deng Jun Jie Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 400,000,000 13.71%
Az ZEEI AR (M)
Kingston Securities Limited Beneficial owner (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
(the “Underwriter”)
SFEESFERRA EnEA A HE2)
([e8HE )
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
G AR (fE2)
Kingston Capital Asia Limited Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
m R (fE2)
Kingston Financial Group Limited Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
eNEeRERERA A A (P E2)
Active Dynamic L|m|ted Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
RS R e (fEE2)
Chu Yuet Wah Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2) 1,636,907,461 33.33%
RAERL A AR (i EE2)

P rs

Ny, 3
3 ~ - st




Notes:

3)

400,000,000 shares are held by Honghu which is wholly-owned by Mr. Deng Jun
Jie. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Deng Jun Jie is deemed to be interested in all the
shares held by Honghu.

The total of 1,636,907,461 shares represent the maximum of 1,636,907,461
underwritten shares which are underwritten by the Underwriter under the
underwriting agreement. The Underwriter is wholly owned by Galaxy Sky
Investments Limited which in turn is wholly owned by Kingston Capital Asia
Limited. Kingston Capital Asia Limited is 100% owned by Kingston Financial
Group Limited which is 42.90% owned by Active Dynamic Limited. Mrs. Chu Yuet
Wah owns 100% interest in Active Dynamic Limited. By virtue of the SFO, each of
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited, Kingston Capital Asia Limited, Kingston Financial
Group Limited, Active Dynamic Limited and Ms. Chu Yuet Wah is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by the Underwriter. After the completion of the
Open Offer on 15 January 2015, the Underwriter is no longer the substantial
shareholder of the Company.

The percentage is calculated on the basis of 2,917,990,845 shares of the
Company in issue as at 31 December 2014.

Save as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any
other relevant interests or short position in the issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 December 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and purchases
attributable to the major customers and suppliers respectively during the
year is as follows:
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GERE

(1)  BEAEXERERARZBBREE400,000,000% 8%
7o MBEFHFREKD - BERNLTERR AR
FBE%SEE ZRHOF RS -

(2) &#£1,636,907,461 % R 1545 5% % 1,636,907,461
RABHEPREDHEBECHEZBHERND - 2
7 i Galaxy Sky Investments Limited® & # A& -
Galaxy Sky Investments Limited Bl f Kingston
Capital Asia Limited2 & # & ° Kingston Capital
Asia Limited @ M 2SR EBER A HESR
100% s - &M ESEEE AR AR R MActive
Dynamic Limited# & 42.90% # 25 - K AFE +
8 Active Dynamic Limited 100% 25 » RIEE
% M HEAE &G - Galaxy Sky Investments Limited
Kingston Capital Asia Limited ~ £/ @£ h&EEH
R A7) + Active Dynamic Limited 2k AEL +&
BERRARBEEREZMEROPEEER -
PHABER-_T—AF—AT+AB=EKE B2
BTHARNRBIZ FERE -

B) ZEALENDERARAAR=ZZT—WFE+=A
=t+—HZBBEITRMEE2,917,990,845/% &t
=

BREXHBEEEN R_T—HUFE+ A
=t—B ARBETHABFRANARDET
AR Z (R EAbAERR s SA B -

FTEREFRHES

TR ARXBEEFRHEBREAREHE
BMERBENERFIIWT -

Percentage of
the Group'’s total

HAREEAENT I
Purchases Sales
REE HEHE
The largest customer BAEP - 48%
Five largest customers in aggregate AARBFEAR - 98%
The largest supplier &AHFER 50% -
Five largest suppliers in aggregate RAARHEEERT 97% -

At no time during the year, have the directors, their associates or any
shareholder of the Company (which, to the knowledge of the directors,
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in

these major customers and suppliers.

RNEREFMSE - ARAEE  HBEAL
S E ISR (53 B A A0 B A2 B IR AN
/5% %) BLEBA LS EERS R
EfHE -
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the directors, the Company has maintained a sufficient
public float throughout the year ended 31 December 2014 and as at the
latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited, the auditors
of the Company, who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Mr. Li Yang

DEPUTY CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong, 26 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
43/F, The Lee Gardens

33 Hysan Avenue

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

faikPia

Shine‘ZOin?’

TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
HEREZERERAF

(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Best
Group Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 159, which comprise
the consolidated statements of financial position as at 31 December
2014, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2014, and of
the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P05044

Hong Kong
26 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeBaRkEtZERAER

i)y =]

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

2014 2013
NOTES HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—MEF =5
M5 FTEx FAT
Turnover O 7 329,828 190,184
Revenue U z5 8 276,276 47,739
Cost of sales SHE A (265,151) (59,986)
Gross profit (loss) EH(18) 11,125 (12,247)
Other income Efth g A 9 1,443 6,316
Selling and distribution expenses HE R EEZ N (4) (3,429)
Administrative and other expenses TR EMST B (24,419) (21,917)
Impairment loss on goodwill PR A e - (36,729)
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BB RREREEE
equipment (16,883) (24,642)
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 R IE R E R - (2,200)
Realised loss on held for trading RER SIEE 2B 2R EE
investments 22 (5.414) (332)
Unrealised gain (loss) on fair value change ##{EX% 518 & 2 A (E & &
on held for trading investments REHR Uz (E8) 22 8,349 (5,554)
Finance costs B & A AN 10 (2,207) (2,592)
Loss before tax BR7 A BT 1R 11 (28,010) (103,326)
Income tax (expense) credit Fristi (A )Ex 13 (331) 2,999
Loss for the year FANEE (28,341) (100,327)
Other comprehensive (expense) Hit2mE(ZH) KA
income
Items that may be reclassified AE P HE B s B -
subsequently to profit or loss:
Exchange differences arising on translating # & & 4 % 75 b5 &= 4 2 [E 5,
foreign operations EH (1,364) 3,326
Fair value gain on available-for-sale AHEERE 2 AT ERR
investments 4,612 =
3,248 3,326
Total comprehensive expense FREEXHAE
for the year (25,093) (97,001)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

2014 2013
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—ZE—MEF =5
L FTEx FAT
Loss for the year attributable to: FAEER T SEEN :
Owners of the Company ZAN/NEIEZEN (17,538) (76,162)
Non-controlling interests FEIE N (10,803) (24,165)
(28,341) (100,327)
Total comprehensive expense for the year FRZ2M > LA R NSE
attributable to: FEfh
Owners of the Company RARER A (13,636) (74,360)
Non-controlling interests FEIE IR 2 (11,457) (22,641)
(25,093) (97,001)
Loss per share HREE 15

- Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EARREHECEW) 0.69 centsfll 3.13 centsflll
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R 3R

As at 31 December 2014 R=—F—MF+—-H=+—H
2014 2013
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—-F —F—=4F
ih=s FET FHT
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BRE LR E 16 7,611 23,803
Prepaid lease payment ENHEE 17 12,131 12,536
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 18 53,112 7,500
Goodwill HES 19 - -
72,854 43,839
Current assets REBEE
Prepaid lease payment ENHEE 17 279 282
Inventories FE 20 10,904 15,002
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H At fE Y GRIE 21 113,912 94,627
Held for trading investments BHIER FIRE 22 98,030 22,994
Pledged bank deposit B EIFRITER 23 59 61
Bank balances and cash RITHEB KRR S 24 99,785 169,953
322,969 302,919
Current liabilities nBAE
Trade and other payables B S REMENFKIE 25 32,788 34,502
Loan from a non-controlling M A R EIER S E R
interest of a subsidiary 26 28,126 41,189
Tax liabilities HBEAaE 11,363 11,252
72,277 86,943
Net current assets RBEEFE 250,692 215,976

Total assets less current liabilities EEABRABAE 323,546 259,815
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As at 31 December 2014 R —FE—#E+{—-HA=+—H

2014 2013
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF =5
L FET FHET
Capital and Reserves BRAR &
Share capital %N 28 145,900 121,584
Reserves &l 198,653 147,781
Equity attributable to owners of RABIHEE AEGRER
the Company 344,553 269,365
Non-controlling interests JEPE AR RS (21,007) (9,550)
323,546 259,815

The consolidated financial statements on pages 51 to 159 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March
2015 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Yang
=5
Director

EE

FLIEEI9B LA BHREREN_E
—RAFE=ZA -+ BEEZ/HIAERKET

% Wil FIRKREE

Li Xiaolong

TR

Director

EZE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAEREHE

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed ~ Translation ~ Statutory ~options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK§'000  HKF'O00  HK$000  HK§'000  HKF'O00  HK$000  HK§'000  HK§'000
(Notei) (Notei)
REORBER MRS BNMR  MRNR MRNMG MNEMME  mMER 0% mERmE M
TR TR T TR TR TR TR TR T Th
() (i)
At 1 January 2013 R5-Z%-F-A 121584 218,14 1,9% 61 817 3113 - (o010 375 13090 356816
Loss forthe year EfEE - - - - - - - (1) (6160 (4165 (100320)
Other comprefensive EMEBRENA:
income for the year:
Bxchange differences BEENEEREL L
arising on translating EizE
foreign operations - - - 1802 - - - - 1802 1524 3326
Total comprehensive income~ ERATRA (R, 658
(expense) for the year - - - 1802 - - - (16162) (743600 (22641)  (97,001)
At 31 December 2013 RIE-ZETZAZT-R 11584 28145 1,99 1863 817 3113 - (16617 269,365 (95500 259815
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &;% —

AERBDE

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

Share  Investment Non-
Share Share Contributed  Translation ~ Statutory ~options revaluation Accumulated controlling
capital ~ premium surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses  Subtotal interests Total
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HKS000  HKY'000  HK§'000
(Notei) (Notei)
Ba  RHEE HARR  ARRE  EERE BBEBRE REEMRE  RHES Nt FEREE it
tin T TEr T TEr  TEr  TEm T TEn T TEn
k) (i)
At 1 January 2014 NE-ME-F-A 121584 278,145 1.9% 1863 817 31,132 - (166172) 269,365 (9.550) 259,815
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - - (17538 (17538)  (10803)  (28341)
Other comprehensive (expense) — EREM2E (A -
income for the year:
Bxchange differences BEBNEERES L

arising on translating EizE

foreign operations - - - (10) - - - - (10) (654) (1,364)
Fair value gain on THERE A AN

avallable-for-sale investments - - - - - - 4612 - 4,612 - 4612
Total comprehensive (expense) — EM2E(RHMALE

income for the year - - - (10) - - 4,612 (17538) (13636  (11457)  (25093)
Issue of shares upon placing ~~ RERETRA(H328)

(Note 28) 21316 63,222 - - - - - - 87,538 - 87,538
Transaction cost attributableto  Hf7HEaREf 2

issue of new ordinary shares —~ RBAA - (2.189) - - - - - - (2.189) - (2189
Recognition of equity-stled EMLM&H%% A1)

share-based payments OE(EL)

(Note 29) - - - - - 3475 - - 3475 - 3475
Share options lapsed (Note 29) 2 B RE(Fz129) - - - - - (1,039) - 1,039 - - -
At 31 December 2014 RIE-IE

t-A=1-A 14590 339178 1,996 1,153 817 33,568 4612 (182671) 344553 (2100 323546
Note i: The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between Mizki: AEBZHARBIERRTROR—LALNE
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the EEBHBMATSMER AT ER LM - B
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main Board 48 BT U B M B A B 2 AR 19 T 18 B VE B AT #a
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in 1996 and the nominal value of BOIZAATIRMEES 5 -
the Company’s shares issued in exchange.
Note ii: In accordance with the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") Company Mizkii : IRIBPEARLMBE(HE]) A FE RS R H

Law and the PRC subsidiaries’ Articles of Association, a subsidiary registered
in the PRC is required to appropriate 10% of its annual statutory net profit
as determined in accordance with relevant statutory rules and regulations
applicable to enterprises established in the PRC (after offsetting any prior
years' losses) to the statutory reserve. When the balance of such reserve fund
reaches 50% of the entity’s capital, any further appropriation is optional. The
statutory reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to increase
capital. However, such balance of the statutory reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25% of the capital after such usages.

BARZAKERMA - RPEZMZHEA
B & & IR EVE F A TE 4 F 69 10% 51 A K E
B o BEETMATBIBE P EK Y 2 B EE
Az ABETERRREREE (BEHEMA A
FEER) - M EAERERBRITARARER
H50% @ R ARIBIEHE — HIRE o A E B
AR AT FE 2 BRIEMBAE - A -
ZATERBZHBRNLERE VAR
HRERZ25% °
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
an\ Iﬁrﬁl)lbiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—=—MF —E—=F
FET FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Loss before tax bR AT (28,010) (103,326)
Adjustments for: HTHIEE (EHAEE -
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERRETE
equipment 2,523 6,743
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TR S # 279 213
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A Rz e (53) =
Impairment loss on goodwill VPR gt - 36,729
Impairment loss on property, plant and YZE - B REiE
equipment VERI=NZRi=) 16,883 24,642
Impairment loss on trade receivables B 5 EWGRIE R EEE - 2,200
Finance costs A& R A 2,207 2,592
Unrealised (gain) loss on fair value BERSEEZ AT EE
change on held for trading AN (e ) 518
investments (8,349) 5,554
Allowance for inventories FERE - 4,074
Trade and other payable written back B 5 N E M ER
RIA T[] - (3,137)
Write-off of property, plant and WEEYZE - BB &R
equipment 13 -
Share-based payments expense PABR A 5 5k 32 1 3,475 -
Interest income FLEYA (1,031) (1,314)
Operating cash flows before movements — &:iE@& & & &ha12
in working capital KeREmE (12,063) (25,030)
Decrease in inventories FEREA 3,796 2,813
(Increase) decrease in trade and other B 5 R H A EIAE
receivables ()RS (85,452) 23,596
Increase in held for trading investments BER SIE L (66,687) (7,276)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 & EH M pER
FRIER (1,777) (61)
Cash used in operations KEFMAZHS (162,183) (5,958)
Income tax paid B FTSH - (1,069)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING REXBAAZRLSFHE

ACTIVITIES

(162,183) (7,027)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

2014 2013
NOTE HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T—=F
B =E FET THT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BREZH
Interest received 2 UF & 1,031 1,314
Proceeds of asset held for sale HEHEBE B HIE - 3,000
Deposit refunded (paid) for potential BR[O ()R E
acquisition 50,000 (50,000)
Addition of prepaid lease payment EINFENEE (151) (12,821)
Acquisition of available-for-sale g Al SR &
investments (41,000) -
Disposal of a subsidiary H & —fEHTE A A 30 550 -
Purchase of property, plant and BEYE  WENMERE
equipment (3.580) (453)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING REZEHFE(FTA)Z
ACTIVITIES B T8 6,850 (58,960)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary Bl ERFEITE B2
shares upon placing Fr{S 2R 87,538 -
Interest paid RN - (40)
Payment of transaction costs S B R BT R AR R
attributable to issue of ordinary shares ZR B
upon placing (2,189) =
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING ®EZRERE(FTE)Z
ACTIVITIES REeRHE 85,349 (40)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH HeRBESEEBEEZ
EQUIVALENTS WA FE (69,984) (66,027)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R—B—HzZBER
1 JANUARY R&%EER 169,953 236,284
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes  [ESR & &)~ g2 (184) (304)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT R+=—A=+—82
31 DECEMBER, represented by bank HeRESEEER -
balances and cash AIRITAEER IR 2 51 AR
99,785 169,953
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place of business
of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information of the
annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency
of the Company while the functional currencies of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in Note 5b(i).

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of
its principal subsidiaries (together with the Company referred to as
the “Group”) are set out in Note 38.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

In the current year, the Company has applied the following new
and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS(s)"”), amendments and Interpretations (“Int(s)"),
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA").

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27

Investment Entities

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures
for Non-Financial Assets
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
Hong Kong (IFRS Levies
Interpretations Committee)

("HK(IFRIC)") = Int 21

—REH
ARAARERERMRT Y FHeE
RAT  HRGEEEBAZSHAR
AR(THRFF]) £ o KRR M
EERESE LS IR ERZ A
AAHNRE -

meEBBHmRERAET(ET] 2
IRRAZ N EHHER - MEZMEB
7 2 TR A5 BRI ESD() ©

\|

5

ARBRREZERAR  EXEZHMBEL
AERARRIGRR [AKE]) 2%
BHEMNHIEE3S -

FE R #TR] BRI R] 2 BB Bt
BHREZEA(FRMBRE

2R )

RAFE  ARFCEANATHESES
AEAE([ZERETMAE])BEMH2
el MBI BBV RERER - B
EEPBHEER - BAGEA(E
AeREL]) BT ARRE(R
Bl

BRI REER  REEE
F105; - BB
HEERIFE125 K
B
EVNE ATV
BB GTERFE325 HMEHEREER
BRI SHAR
BB ETERE36 FERMEEZAKE
ZIEETA SHEEE
BRSTERIE39% TETAECZERR

PACTIES

Bt (ARPBRS
ZEZE9)
- RBFE215%

Vi O A 12

SE

s
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &;% —

2.

BRI

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)
HKFRS 15

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKFRSs

Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27

Amendments to HKFRS 10

and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 11

Financial Instruments*

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2010 - 2012 Cycle’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2011 - 2013 Cycle’

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012 — 2014 Cycle?

Disclosure Initiative?

Defined Benefit Plans: Employee
Contributions’

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation?

Agriculture: Bearer Plants?

Equity Method in Separate Financial
Statements?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?

Investment Entities: Applying the
Consolidation Exception?

Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations?

—EF—H=1—HIFZE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018.

The directors of the Company anticipates that, except as described
below, the application of other new and revised HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was amended in 2010 and includes the requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS 9 was further amended to bring
into effect a substantial overhaul of hedge accounting that will
allow entities to better reflect their risk management activities
in the financial statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was
issued in 2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9
that were issued in previous years with limited amendments to
the classification and measurement by introducing a “fair value
through other comprehensive income” (“FVTOCI”) measurement
category for certain financial assets. The finalised version of HKFRS
9 (2014) also introduces an “expected credit loss” model for
impairment assessments.

FERFE] RAEERT 2 B R
HHmEER ([ BEMBERSE
ZA ) o)

B M 18 14 ok 2 2 M 35T 2 4
IBATE BB A 32 2 R ()

i R-ZT—NE+A—BRZERABZFED
RIAERY o

2 R-T—R"E—A—BRZERBZFEED
PR ©

3 RZB—tF - —BHRZERBZFED
RIAERY o

¢ RZZE—N\F—A—BRXZE&MABZFED
RIAERY o

BRI XA ESN - ARREERHIER
Hp#a] REERT BB BHREER A
SHAKERE R BIRBREKX

=2
R °

BB BHEEREIGE (—F—
F)E@T A

\_ETNFRMB2BEERBREE
AIESFSIAERMEEDERFTEZH
BE - BERMBREERNZIREERR
—T-TFER UBRBEIER

g‘l’%fﬁ‘%ﬁg\t\&EX/ﬁﬁ@wuZ%ﬁﬁE B/\_
T—=F BFEUMBHRESEAESHRE
E—HEE]  WEBHRGHEZE
BIER]  FERBRIBHRRPERR

AR EIRRE - BBV BIRELDSE

IR RAIRARN T~ FH M - 5
HETEMEESIA TRATFEAAR
formEkE (R AFEFARMEE
WD EEREMN A BEFE
PR E BN B EEAESFH 2
RE BHBEHEOBKFEFEEAR
B - EEMBRELERFEIR(=F
— ) B9 B AR AR AN TR B RUE AT A4 5] A
[TEEAEEEE IR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &£ ==

BRI

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as follows:

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement to be subsequently measured at amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held
within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised
cost at the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business model whose
objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets, and that have contractual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured at FVTOCI. All
other debt investments and equity investments are measured
at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting periods.
In addition, under HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income
generally recognised in profit or loss.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9
(2014) requires that the amount of change in the fair value
of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the
credit risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive
income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities attributable
to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit risk are not
subsequently reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the
entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial
liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

2. BRI REIER] 2B EM
HHmEER ([ BEMBERSE
ZA ) o)

B G EL 14 5 A SO 35T R A
BATE BB R A ()

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued) BB IR EERF9SE(—F—

In the aspect of impairment assessments, the impairment
requirements relating to the accounting for an entity’s
expected credit losses on its financial assets and commitments
to extend credit were added. Those requirements eliminate
the threshold that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of
credit losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS
9 (2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised. Instead,
expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses should always be accounted for. The amount of
expected credit losses is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition and,
consequently, more timely information is provided about
expected credit losses.

HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which is more closely
aligns hedge accounting with risk management activities
undertaken by companies when hedging their financial and

F)E@MTAGE)

SBENETMS - MATERE
BHESREERREHTEMREER
AEZEREEBRZ G REE
RIE - REREBEKT BB
EQFE39R R EEEIENM
& - REE BV HHREERNF IR

T—F) 2RETTE - R
i{:ﬁréﬁéﬁf AEBEEE
HeRe BRE-BEHEHE
EERUREEEBEERELZ
BEALRK - REWME B HE RS
EEBRZERETEN  UR
BR B # R HE B8 A RS B R 2
B WRABEHEBRZEHE
EEEER -

BEMBHRELENFIR(=-F
—mE)SIAFR - AFFARE
B RS 22 B N IF S BUE R B

non-financial risk exposures. As a principle-based approach, FRE S R e B IR OE B B = At
HKFRS 9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be E2RE - BBV KRS ERFE9

identified and measured and does not distinguish between
financial items and non-financial items. The new model also
enables an entity to use information produced internally for
risk management purposes as a basis for hedge accounting.
Under HKAS 39, it is necessary to exhibit eligibility and
compliance with the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics
that are designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are based
on an economic assessment of the strength of the hedging
relationship. This can be determined using risk management
data. This should reduce the costs of implementation
compared with those for HKAS 39 hedge accounting because
it reduces the amount of analysis that is required to be
undertaken only for accounting purposes.
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2.

BRI

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of
HKFRS 9 (2014) in the future may have significant impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been
completed.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which
the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. Thus, HKFRS 15 introduces a model that applies to
contracts with customers, featuring a contract-based five-step
analysis of transactions to determine whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

(i) Identify the contract with the customer;
(i) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;

(iii) Determine the transaction price;

(iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;
and

(v) Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements which aim to enable users of the financial
statements to understand the nature, amount, timing and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with
customers.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

FERFTE] R ARIER] 2 B A
%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ@é\; B%HmE
4R (%8)

B 9545 L 14 o 2 2 T R
BB BT BREER (5

BEBUBHREERFEIR(—F—0
F)2ET A%

FREVBHRELERFSR(—FT—M4F)
BN -E-N\F-HA Bt 2&EAHRZ
FRHMAER - BrERTER -

ARRESHHHERRMABTEMBR
EEAESR(—FT—MF) A HAE
EreREELSRABEMZHNE
BREAEATE - R - REKFAR
BIAT - HERTEFEL ARG IR
17 °

BEBUBHREEREISHEFEXN
A

BB M B ImEERE 1558020 R R
RERBEERNGEARLARETFEERD
A EmIREHEE - ARRZER
B RBZEEmARE A RERH
RAE - Bt - BRMBHREEAF15
?)ﬁ%l)\%ﬁﬁﬁé%)ﬁé%@ﬂﬂii EFH
IR ZHEHMERB LD - NEER
BARERM = - &ﬁ@?&l& SR B R M
B > R EZEIIAT :

(i) BHEEPZAL:
(i) BHIEHABITZEE:
(i) BERSER

(iv) RETTZEEDERXSER Rk

(v BEER)EBETEERERK
)\Q

EEMBRELERFISHETSIAKRE

EMREERBERTE  §EEWHRE

FRAEBRBREER I LA NESE
ZWHEFIREREZEE « &% - B
RATEEM -



BIEEEZEREMRAT 20145F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and
the related Interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in the
future may have a material impact on the amounts reported and
disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 2 (i) change the definitions of “vesting
condition” and “market condition”; and (ii) add definitions for
“performance condition” and “service condition” which were
previously included within the definition of “vesting condition”.
The amendments to HKFRS 2 are effective for share-based payment
transactions for which the grant date is on or after 1 July 2014.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability should be measured
at fair value at each reporting date, irrespective of whether the
contingent consideration is a financial instrument within the scope
of HKFRS 9 or HKAS 39 or a non-financial asset or liability. Changes
in fair value (other than measurement period adjustments) should
be recognised in profit and loss. The amendments to HKFRS 3 are
effective for business combinations for which the acquisition date
is on or after 1 July 2014.

The amendments to HKFRS 8 (i) require an entity to disclose the
judgements made by management in applying the aggregation
criteria to operating segments, including a description of the
operating segments aggregated and the economic indicators
assessed in determining whether the operating segments
have “similar economic characteristics”; and (ii) clarify that a
reconciliation of the total of the reportable segments’ assets to the
entity’s assets should only be provided if the segment assets are
regularly provided to the chief operating decision-maker.

The amendments to the basis for conclusions of HKFRS 13 clarify
that the issue of HKFRS 13 and consequential amendments to
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 9 did not remove the ability to measure short-
term receivables and payables with no stated interest rate at their
invoice amounts without discounting, if the effect of discounting is
immaterial.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 remove perceived
inconsistencies in the accounting for accumulated depreciation/
amortisation when an item of property, plant and equipment or
an intangible asset is revalued. The amended standards clarify
that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner consistent
with the revaluation of the carrying amount of the asset and that
accumulated depreciation/amortisation is the difference between
the gross carrying amount and the carrying amount after taking
into account accumulated impairment losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 — 2012 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 24 clarify that a management entity
providing key management personnel services to a reporting
entity is a related party of the reporting entity. Consequently,
the reporting entity should disclose as related party transactions
the amounts incurred for the service paid or payable to the
management entity for the provision of key management
personnel services. However, disclosure of the components of such
compensation is not required.

The directors of the Company do not anticipates that the
application of the amendments included in the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle will have a material
effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify that the standard does not
apply to the accounting for the formation of all types of joint
arrangement in the financial statements of the joint arrangement
itself.

The amendments to HKFRS 13 clarify that the scope of the portfolio
exception for measuring the fair value of a group of financial assets
and financial liabilities on a net basis includes all contracts that are
within the scope of, and accounted for in accordance with, HKAS
39 or HKFRS 9, even if those contracts do not meet the definitions
of financial assets or financial liabilities within HKAS 32.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKAS 40 clarify that HKAS 40 and HKFRS 3
are not mutually exclusive and application of both standards may
be required. Consequently, an entity acquiring investment property
must determine whether:

(a) the property meets the definition of investment property in
terms of HKAS 40; and

(b) the transaction meets the definition of a business combination
under HKFRS 3.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2011-2013 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group's
consolidated financial statements.

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 — 2014 Cycle

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle include a
number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which are summarised
below.

The amendments to HKFRS 5 clarify that changing from one of the
disposal methods (i.e. disposal through sale or disposal through
distribution to owners) to the other should not be considered to
be a new plan of disposal, rather it is a continuation of the original
plan. There is therefore no interruption of the application of the
requirements in HKFRS 5. Besides, the amendments also clarify
that changing the disposal method does not change the date of
classification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Annual Improvement to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle
(Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 clarify that a servicing contract that
includes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement
against the guidance for continuing involvement in HKFRS 7
in order to assess whether the additional disclosures for any
continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is derecognised
in its entirety are required. Besides, the amendments to HKFRS 7
also clarify that disclosures in relation to offsetting financial assets
and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report, unless the disclosures provide a significant update
to the information reported in the most recent annual report.

The amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the market depth of high
quality corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in which
the obligation is denominated, rather than the country where the
obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be
used.

HKAS 34 requires entities to disclose information in the notes to
the interim financial statements “if not disclosed elsewhere in
the interim financial report”. The amendments to HKAS 34 clarify
that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim
financial statements or incorporated by cross-reference between
the interim financial statements and wherever they are included
within the greater interim financial report. The other information
within the interim financial report must be available to users on
the same terms as the interim financial statements and at the same
time. If users do not have access to the other information in this
manner, then the interim financial report is incomplete.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments included in the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of revenue-based
depreciation methods for property, plant and equipment under
HKAS 16. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a rebuttable
presumption that the use of revenue-based amortisation methods
for intangible assets is inappropriate. This presumption can be
rebutted only in the following limited circumstances:

(i) when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue;

(i) when a high correlation between revenue and the
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible assets
could be demonstrated.

The amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
should be applied prospectively.

As the Group use straight-line method for depreciation of property,
plant and equipment, the directors of the Company do not
anticipate that the application of the amendments to HKAS 16 and
HKAS 38 will have a material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements

The amendments to HKAS 27 allow an entity to apply the equity
method to account for its investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates in its separate financial statements. As a result
of the amendments, the entity can choose to account for these
investments either:

(i) at cost;

(if)  in accordance with HKFRS 9 (or HKAS 39); or

(iii) using the equity method as described in HKAS 28.

The amendments to HKAS 27 will become effective for financial
statements with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments should be
applied retrospectively.

As the Company does not have any investment in joint ventures,
the directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of the amendments to HKAS 27 will have a material impact on the
Company'’s financial statements.
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2.

BRI

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments provide guidance on addressing the
acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and those in HKAS 28, in dealing with the sale or contribution of
assets between an investor and its joint venture and associate. An
investing entity is required to recognise the gain or loss arising from
selling or contributing assets that constitutes or contains a business
to a joint venture or associate in full. An investing entity is required
to recognise the gain or loss arising from selling or contributing
assets that does not constitute or contain a business to a joint
venture or associate only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in that joint venture or associate.

The amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will become effective
for financial statements with annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2016. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments
should be applied prospectively.

As the Group does not have any investment in joint operations, the
directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of
the amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments clarify that companies should use professional
judgement in determining what information as well as where and
in what order information is presented in the financial statements.
Specifically, an entity should decide, taking into consideration all
relevant facts and circumstances, how it aggregates information in
the financial statements, which include the notes. An entity does
not require to provide a specific disclosure required by a HKFRS if
the information resulting from that disclosure is not material. This
is the case even if the HKFRS contain a list of specific requirements
or describe them as minimum requirements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative
(Continued)

Besides, the amendments provide some additional requirements
for presenting additional line items, headings and subtotals when
their presentation is relevant to an understanding of the entity’s
financial position and financial performance respectively. Entities,
in which they have investments in associates or joint ventures,
are required to present the share of other comprehensive income
of associates and joint ventures accounted for using the equity
method, separated into the share of items that (i) will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (ii) will be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are met.

Furthermore, the amendments clarify that:

(i) an entity should consider the effect on the understandability
and comparability of its financial statements when
determining the order of the notes; and

(ii)  significant accounting policies are not required to be disclosed
in one note, but instead can be included with related
information in other notes.

The amendments will become effective for financial statements
with annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Earlier
application is permitted.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 1 in the future may have a material
impact on the disclosures made in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

In addition, the annual report requirements of Part 9 “Accounts
and Audit” of the new Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) come into operation as from the company’s first financial year
commencing on or after 3 March 2014 in accordance with section
358 of that Ordinance. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of expected impact of the changes in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance on the consolidated financial statements in
the period of initial application of Part 9 of the new Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). So far it has concluded that the
impact is unlikely to be significant and will primarily only affect
the presentation and disclosure of information in the consolidated
financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the
“Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, which for this financial year and the
comparative period continue to be those of the predecessor
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32), in accordance with
transitional and saving arrangements for Part 9 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622), “Accounts and Audit”, which
are set out in sections 76 to 87 of Schedule 11 to that Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as
explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e. an exit
price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement
and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in
HKAS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are
observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value
measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

—  Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at
the measurement date;

—  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Group:

- has power over the investee;

- is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

—  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control until
the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the
Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it derecognises the
assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary
at their carrying amounts at the date when control is lost and
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received, with any resulting difference being recognised as a gain
or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit is less than its carrying amount,
the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill
is not reversed in subsequent periods.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods are
delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the goods;

—  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement
to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective
control over the goods sold;

- the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— itis probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

— the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Income from provision of freight forwarding agency services is
recognised when the services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established
(provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Group and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to
the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of
exchanges prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end
of the reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the end of
each reporting period. Income and expenses items are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions attaching
to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic
basis over the periods in which the Group recognises as expenses
the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
Specifically, government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current
assets are recognised as other payables and accrued charges in
the consolidated statement of financial position and transferred to
profit or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans, the
Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) Scheme, Central Provident
Fund (“CPF") Scheme and state-managed retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries in the period the related service is
rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are
measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to
be paid in exchange for the related service.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable
and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
difference to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and an
associate, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

FESHBER =
BIE ()
BRI ERERRHE A F 2 4

A BRI E I ZRAER - EARERE
2HIERSER B NERERTAN
BER AT R A A RIBR O - BZFIR
B NSRRI ERAAEL
ZBRERIBEE - BAEF LR A
RS EZRNN 2 R HERBIRF - W8
HARO AJ B % 2R 43 [0 B B RD

RIETIEE E R B ERBEN &S HARA
BRI ER Rz HER(RFUX)
RERAENEREERRE  TERER
FHEET=E o

BREHRBAEREEZERRAKE
BHRGERRKEONEREERAE
FREEMEL 2 HHRER

EHMNMBERER WA RER - S HE
REMEERA S E RN ERERZH
BEBEZERT EHRELEHREAANR
FARINEmEEBARERNERETD
FERR o W& B ASGRER R A IR
BEBAFARMES - MIRKEBE
HFARB S AGRBBEE -



BIEEEZEREMRAT 20145F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as described
below) are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs of inventories are calculated using the weighted average
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and short-term deposits in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-
term deposits with a maturity of three months or less. For the
purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are stated on the statement of financial
position of the Company at cost less accumulated impairment loss.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into the following
specified categories, including financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial assets. The classification depends on the nature
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including financial
assets held for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and
has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes
in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in
profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned
on the financial assets and is included in the fair value change
on held for trading investments line item in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. Fair value is determined in the manner
described in note 5c.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables
(including trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposit and
bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of the
interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are
either designated as available-for-sale or are not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity
investments.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets and are traded in an active market
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the carrying amount of available-for-sale monetary
financial assets relating to changes in foreign currency rates,
interest income calculated using the effective interest method and
dividends on available-for-sale equity investments are recognised in
profit or loss. Other changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously
accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified
to profit or loss (see the accounting policy in respect of impairment
loss on financial assets below).

Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised
in profit or loss when the Group's right to receive the dividends is
established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

The fair value of available-for-sale monetary financial assets
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
currency and translated at the spot rate prevailing at the end of the
reporting period. The foreign exchange gains and losses that are
recognised in profit or loss are determined based on the amortised
cost of the monetary asset. Other foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot
be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must
be settled by delivery of such unquoted equity investments are
measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the end
of each reporting period (see the accounting policy in respect of
impairment loss on financial assets below).

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered
to be objective evidence of impairment.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy
or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group's past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in the
carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period
in which the impairment takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

In respect of available-for-sale equity securities, impairment
losses previously recognised in profit or loss are not reversed
through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an
impairment loss is recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investments valuation reserve.
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3.

BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified
as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity investment is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and loan
from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

FESHBE &

EMIT A
HBEERKATA

AEEERETZEBRRATARE
PRI ENL 2 BEATARTBE
BEERRATAZ EEMBERAMBAR
A o

BATA
AR B R LR RS — R B RS
HIMBRBERCEET ZHRIED 2

AL - ARABEITZBRATAZEK
PSRRI BRI TR ANHER ©

HEEE

B 7% BB (B 45 FE A BR R B L b A 35K
TALA R MY A I IR i e ) AR E B
BERMZXIZEHN A E -

ERFIEZ
BERNZRTEERFABZBHKA

AR BB 8 D R B RS 2 0% o
ERMNEDRMBERB A F RN
(fi 58 B ) B2 BA Rl R R WA BR ik 5T R 2R
ReXH (BRBRERMNE 52
A ER M NSRIREREZE - RPK
AR EMBERITE) ERERI T
R 2 BREFE 2 FIE -

M EFASIR BRI R EERER

R

RBERREEWRDIRSRE 26 HIEF

‘JHH iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂfﬁ}’“ﬂzﬁﬁlﬂ
ﬁﬁﬂﬁ%é%%ﬁ%Z%ﬁﬁﬁm
HREBES—EE - Zl»‘%@ﬁ@%tﬁ@
R TEERE °

REZR LRV BEER - EEKRE
BEEWRFEEREAREREGEZE
WAERT N DR 2 Rt Bm 2 8
Mz Z8  eRamRHER



BIEEEZEREMRAT 20145F3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e PR ERR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 7 November
2002 and vested on or after 1 January 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the
fair value of share options granted at the grant date is recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options
granted vest immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity
(share options reserve).

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to share
premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting
date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
accumulated losses.

Share options granted to employees on or before 7
November 2002, or granted after 7 November 2002 and
vested before 1 January 2005

The financial impact of share options granted is not recorded
in the consolidated financial statements until such time as the
options are exercised, and no charge is recognised in profit or
loss in respect of the value of options granted. Upon the exercise
of the share options, the resulting shares issued are recorded as
additional share capital at the nominal value of the shares, and the
excess of the exercise price per share over the nominal value of the
shares is recorded as share premium. Options which lapse or are
cancelled prior to their exercise date are deleted from the register
of outstanding options.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

Share options granted to consultants

Share options issued in exchange for goods or services are
measured at the fair values of the goods or services received, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case the
goods or services received are measured by reference to the fair
value of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods or
services received are recognised as expenses, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve), when the Group obtains
the goods or when the counterparties render services, unless the
goods or services qualify for recognition as assets.

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible assets with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered
an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent
of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating unit, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment losses on tangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in
respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or the cash-generating unit) in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income
immediately.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-
going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations (see below), that the directors of the Company
have made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in consolidated financial statements.
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4.

BRI

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Critical judgments in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (Continued)

Buildings

Despite the Group has paid the full purchase consideration
as detailed in Note 16, certain of the Group’s rights to use of
the buildings were not granted formal titles from the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. Based on the advice from the
legal adviser of the Company, the directors of the Company are of
the opinions that the risks and rewards of using these assets have
been transferred to the Group and the absence of formal titles to
these buildings do not impair the value of the relevant properties to
the Group.

Contingency

On 17 April 2013, the Company, as one of the respondents,
and certain of its former directors were served a petition (the
“Petition”) by the Securities and Futures Commission in relation
to certain past transactions of the Group. Based on the opinion of
the independent legal adviser of the Company, as at 31 December
2013 and 2014, the directors of the Company consider that the
Petition does not have significant financial and operating impact on
the Group. Details of the contingency are disclosed in Note 39.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Depreciation and useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking into account the
estimated residual value. The Group assesses annually the residual
value and the useful life of the property, plant and equipment
with reference to the estimated periods that the Group intends to
derive future economic benefits from the use of these assets and if
the expectation differs from the carrying amount, such differences
from the carrying amount will impact the depreciation charges in
the year in which the estimates change.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group assesses annually whether property, plant and
equipment have any indication of impairment, in accordance with
the relevant accounting policies. The recoverable amounts of the
Group's property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of judgment and estimates on future operating cash flows and
discount rates adopted. Where the actual cash flows are different
from the original estimates, a material change in the amount
of impairment may arise. At 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment was approximately
HK$7,611,000 (2013: HK$23,803,000), net of accumulated
impairment loss of HK$40,973,000 (2013: HK$24,642,000).
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4.

BRI

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Net realisable value of inventories

The Group makes allowance for inventories based on an
assessment of the net realisable value of inventories. Allowances
are applied to inventories where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the net realisable value is lower than
the cost of inventories. As at 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of inventories was approximately HK$10,904,000 (2013:
HK$15,002,000), net of accumulated allowance for inventories of
HK$5,771,000 (2013: HK$5,900,000).

Impairment of trade receivables

The policy for impairment of trade receivables of the Group is
based on the evaluation of collectability and aging analysis of
accounts and on management’s judgment. A considerable amount
of judgment is required in assessing the ultimate realisation of
these receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each customer. If the financial
conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting
in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required. At 31 December 2014, the carrying
amount of trade receivables was approximately HK$108,750,000
(2013: HK$29,545,000), net of allowance of doubtful debts
of trade receivables of approximately HK$3,602,000 (2013:
HK$3,649,000).

Impairment of prepaid lease payment

The Group assesses annually whether prepaid lease payment has
any indication of impairment, in accordance with the relevant
accounting policies. The fair value of the prepaid lease payment
was based on a valuation conducted by an independent firm
of professional valuers using property valuation techniques
which involve certain assumptions of market conditions. At 31
December 2014, the carrying amount of prepaid lease payment
is approximately HK$12,410,000 (2013: HK$12,818,000). No
impairment loss was recognised for both years.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Share-based payment expenses

The fair value of share options granted at the grant date to the
directors and employees is recognised as an expense in full at
grant date when the share options granted vest immediately, with
a corresponding adjustment to the Group'’s share options reserve.
In assessing the fair value of the share options, the generally
accepted binomial model was used to calculate the fair value of the
share options. The binomial model requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the volatility of ordinary shares and the
expected life of options etc. Any changes in these assumptions
can significantly affect the estimate of the fair value of the share
options.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of
the value-in-use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been allocated.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value. Where
the actual future cash flows of the CGU are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. At 31 December 2013
and 2014, the carrying amount of goodwill was nil, net of full
impairment loss of approximately HK$36,729,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in Note 19.
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4.

BRI

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of available-for-sale investments stated
at cost less impairment loss

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement to determine when an available-for-
sale investment is impaired. This determination requires significant
judgment. In making this judgment, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration and extent to which the carrying
amount of financial asset is less than its present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset; and the financial health of and short-
term business outlook for the investee, including factors such
as industry and sector performance, changes in technology and
operational and financing cash flow. At 31 December 2014, the
carrying amount of available-for-sale investments stated at cost less
accumulated impairment loss was approximately HK$7,500,000
(2013: HK$7,500,000), net of accumulated impairment loss of
available-for-sale investments of approximately HK$30,750,000
(2013: HK$30,750,000). No impairment loss has been recognised
during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

Provision for current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions. Significant
judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax in the period in which such
determination is made.

At 31 December 2014, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$186,537,000 (2013: HK$164,050,000)
available for offset against future profits. The directors of the
Company make estimates on the future profit streams of the Group
entities of which tax losses are not utilised. A deferred tax asset
has been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$17,303,000 (2013: HK$224,000). No deferred
tax has been recognised of the remaining tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5.

TRTH

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, held for trading investments, available-
for-sale investments, pledged bank deposit, bank balances
and cash, trade and other payables and loan from a non-
controlling interest of a subsidiary. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market
risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Other than the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
Singapore and United States of which functional
currency is RMB, Singapore dollars (“SGD"”) and United
States dollars (“USD") respectively, the functional
currency of the Company and other subsidiaries is HK$.
Certain available-for-sale investments, trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash are denominated
in currencies other than the functional currencies of the
group entities to which they relate. Foreign currencies
are also used to settle expenses for overseas operations,
which expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

a. Categories of financial instruments a. ERMITEZEHR
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—mF —=—=
FBT FHT
Financial assets BEEE
FVTPL (Held for trading investments) BATEYERERRESE
BE(FIERHKE) 98,030 22,994
Loans and receivables (including cash and B &EWHRIE(BFEER© &
cash equivalents) ReEEIEE) 212,250 263,091
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 53,112 7,500
363,392 293,585
Financial liabilities B aE
Amortised cost TRHE SRR 60,914 75,691
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. TR T )
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. M¥EREEBFERBE
policies (Continued) (#8)
Market risk (Continued) miE Rk (&)
Currency risk (Continued) () EXREbEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency AEEUIINETEZEEE
denominated monetary assets at the reporting date are ERREEZEmENT !
as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—ZE—MmEF —E-=F
FaBxT FAT
RMB AR 51,507 -
usb ETT 72,339 -
British Pound (“GBP") mgE(EeE]) 7,225 -
HK$ BT 3,247 2,994
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency ZIKEIIEHTT & AT {a] S 1
hedging policy but the management monitors foreign B EEESE

exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared for USD as HK$ is
pegged to USD.

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is currently exposed to RMB, GBP and HK$
foreign currency risk.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
10% (2013: 10%) increase and decrease in functional
currencies of the relevant group entities, HK$ or RMB,
against the relevant foreign currencies. 10% (2013:
10%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period for a 10%
(2013: 10%) change in foreign currency rates.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5.

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

E@MT A
b. BEREEEERBE®)

Market risk (Continued) TSR (&)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued) () E¥EEE)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued) BRRE DT (8)

MTZ EBBETRFEBERN
RI}J‘@EE%(?’%?@&)\E?&%)
RHABINE(ARE HH

A positive number below indicates a decrease in loss
for the year where the respective functional currency
(HK$ or RMB) strengthens 10% (2013: 10%) against
the relevant foreign currency (RMB, GBP or HK$). For a BT AEI10%(ZF—

10% (2013: 10%) weakening of respective functional F 1 10%) RS FEE o |
currency (HK$ or RMB) against the relevant foreign S EB (BT ARE)
currency (RMB, GBP or HK$), there would be an equal HABREINE (N B - g
and opposite impact on the loss for the year and the B TT)RZEI0%(ZE—=

balances below would be negative. F:10%) ' AIEFEBERE
REEBHERZZE M~
NHEERAIRBE -
Effect on profit or loss
HigRo o
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —E—=F
FET FAT
Strengthen against RMB by 10% HARBHEI0% 3,863 =
Strengthen against GBP by 10% HEEEFE10% 541 -
Strengthen against HK$ by 10% HABTHEI0% 244 225
(i) Interest rate risk (i) FEE

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and loan from
a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, due to the
fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate. It is the
Group's policy to keep its bank balances at floating rate
of interest so as to minimise the fair value interest rate
risk.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i)

(iif)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group is also exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposit (see Note
23 for details).

The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary
actions when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The directors of the Company consider that the interest
rate risk in relation to variable rate bank balances and
loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary are
insignificant due to these balances are either within short
maturity period or the outstanding balances are not
significant.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities and available-
for-sales. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risks. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated
on equity instruments quoted in the Stock Exchange.
In addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk
exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks at the
reporting date.

If the prices of the respective listed investments classified
as held for trading investments had been 20% (2013:
20%) higher/lower, the loss after tax for the year ended
31 December 2014 decrease/increase by approximately
HK$16,371,000 (2013: HK$3,840,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of these listed investments.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
(iii) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

If the prices of the respective available-for-sale
investments stated at fair value had been 20% (2013:
nil) higher/lower, the investment revaluation reserve for
the year ended 31 December 2014 increase/decrease by
approximately HK$9,122,000 (2013: nil) as a result of
the changes in fair value of these investments.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due
to a failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is
arising from the carrying amount of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end
of the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
directors of the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk
is significantly reduced.
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5.

BRI

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit-rating agencies. The Group's
concentration of credit risk by geographical locations are
mainly in the PRC and Hong Kong, which accounted for 53%
and 46% (2013: 97% and nil) of the total trade receivable
as at 31 December 2014 respectively. The Group has
concentration of credit risk as 46% (2013: 81%) and 96%
(2013: 98%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively.

The credit risk on held for trading investments, available-for-
sale investments, and pledged bank deposit is limited because
they are deposited with financial institutions or investment
counterparties with high credit quality and the Group does
not expect any significant counterparty risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group's
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of its bank
balances and cash and considers the risk is minimal.

The maturity dates of all financial liabilities are repayable
on demand or within one year as at the end of each of the
reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

C.

5. T )

Fair value measurements recognised in ¢ RBREEMEERNGZEHBENR
the consolidated statement of financial MERERAZAFEFE
position on a recurring basis
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying KRB EERE  BREXKHR
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded BRI RE  MIFEENR
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements MBEEREEKNANCHERES
approximate their fair values due to short-term or immediate Bk 2 BREEE N TEMRE ©
maturities.
The following table provides an analysis of financial TREHEBEEFMEEENRE RS
instruments that are measured at fair value at the end of each HRUAFEFEZERITES
reporting period for recurring measurement, grouped into - REAEESFHRBREE
Levels 1 to 2 based on the degree to which the fair value is FIEZAFENEAF—BESE
observable in accordance to the Group's accounting policy. —4F o
31 December 2014
—Z2-mF+=A=t+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Total
=8 -t} et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FHE T FHET FET
Financial assets at FVTPL R ATESIRR £ W&
REBCHBKEE
Held for trading-listed equity FHEEE 2 EIRAE
securities * 98,030 - 98,030
Available-for-sale investments TAI{{HERE
Listed equity security ETRARE S 6,739 - 6,739
Unlisted fund instruments JELEMESTE - 38,873 38,873

104,769 38,873 143,642
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. T A
c. Fair value measurements recognised in ¢ REEMEENGESEHER
the consolidated statement of financial MERERAZAFEFTE SR

position on a recurring basis (Continued)

31 December 2013
—F=Ft+ZA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Total
E—4 F_H #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT
Financial assets at FVTPL BRAFEIRRE RS
REBZHKEE
Held for trading-listed equity FHEEE 2 EMRA
securities 785 22,994 - 22,994
There were no transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy REAFERBEFE  FRFERBZ
in the current and prior years. FEIND S HE TSRS o
The valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value EHeMTARNTENSRETHERELE
measurements of each financial instrument on a recurring FTER BB 0 i (B 77 0% Kt A BUR 51 & an
basis are set out below: TS 3
Valuation technique
Fair value hierarchy and key inputs
AFEEE RELEREE@HARE
Listed equity securities Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an active market
ETRAES E—H ERTIZME AR
Unlisted fund instruments Level 2 Quoted price from financial

institutions

FETESTH F_8 T REERE
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXERER
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group REBEEEERNUBRAER T
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the B - BB BELERRLERN
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and e AR AIER AR TR o NEEERE
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged R L F R TE o
from prior year.
The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash AEEBEAEEREREMREEFEE
equivalents, loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary and B MEARBEZERESERIAREA
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued RIEA ANEHEZ(BEEZRITRAR
share capital and reserves. REE) °
The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a RAREFT M EARNERE - (EAR
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of the Company SN2 ARBESEREEANKARE
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each FHEREE 2 BRRBEARARIZEESH
class of capital. Based on recommendations of the directors of EHESR  AEEBSEBBITHRK
the Company, the Group will balance its overall capital structure BITHE T HHEREERGEE -
through new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.
TURNOVER 7. EXH
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—MF —=—=
FET FHT
Trading of goods BEEMm 260,767 -
Manufacture and sales of coal Bl L7 S E I i 9,236 40,620
Provision of international air and sea RHEEMZE F EEERK
freight forwarding services 5,868 6,745
Dividend income from held for trading BERXFEREZKREWA
investments 405 374
Gross proceeds from disposal of held for  HE&ERFHER FIKE 2 FTiS 708
trading investments FRk] 53,552 142,445
329,828 190,184
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8.

BRI

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker, for the purpose of
resource allocation and assessment of segment performance
focuses on the type of goods sold or services delivered or provided.
No operating segments identified by the chief operating decision
maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable segments
of the Group.

Specifically, the Company’s reportable segments same as operating
segments under HKFRS 8 are as follows:

a) International air and sea freight forwarding segment engages
in the provision of international air and sea freight forwarding
and logistic services to customers;

b) Securities trading segment engages in trading of equity
securities and dividend income from held for trading
investments;

¢) Manufacture and sales of coal segment engages in
manufacture and sales of coal products to customers; and

d) Trading of goods segment engages in trading of products
including but not limited to radio system, electronic appliance
and fuel in Hong Kong and the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, there was a new
reportable and operating segment regarding the extension of the
scope of the Group’s principal activities to trading of goods in Hong
Kong and the PRC.
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—mEFZA=1+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. oEER @)
Segment revenues and results DEWEREE
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by TXAREEIZRE D E 52 Wi &
reportable segments. EEDNT °
International
air and Manufacture
sea freight Securities and sales Trading
forwarding trading of coal of goods Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERHZER BER
BLEE R5EH HERR EEER by
TR TR TR TER TR
Year ended 31 December 2014 BE-Z-mE+CR
=t-HLEE
Turnover e 5,868 53,957 9,236 260,767 329,828
Revenue Wiz
External H4) 5,868 405 9,236 260,767 276,276
Segment results PEEE 70 3,032 (19,947) 1,575 (9,270)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RBIBR A2z 53
Unallocated corporate expenses RAOREERS (17,817)
Unallocated other income RARAMRA 1.231
Finance costs BEMA (2,207)
Loss before tax BASE (28,010)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8.

Segment revenues and results (Continued)

International
airand Manufacture
sea freight Securities and sales of
forwarding trading coal Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERHER BER
BLEE #HEE HERRX @t
T BT THAL THL
Year ended 31 December 2013 HZ2-8-=%
TZAZT-HLEEE
Turnover 3 6,745 142,819 40,620 190,184
Revenue Wz
External Hoh 6,745 374 40,620 47,739
Segment results PEEE 3,262 (5,512) (89,531) (91,781)
Unallocated corporate expenses RAREERR (12,085)
Unallocated other income RATEMBA 3132
Finance costs BERAR (2,592)
Loss before tax eyl (103,326)

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3.
Segment (loss) profit represents the (loss from) profit earned by
each segment without allocation of central administration costs,
directors’ emoluments, depreciation of certain property, plant and
equipment, gain on disposal of a subsidiary, net exchange gain
(loss), bank interest income, sundry income and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the chief operating decision maker for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance assessment.

%E%BZ@EWK%EEW?BFELZKE
ZEFTBEMER - o (B8R )& A e
%%ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁ?iZ)@ﬁé)ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂxz/ﬁnﬂ
?-?EPEIER DECHRRITHAR - EEH
ETHENNE  BERRKE -
% P~ Az Yaes - B 5 M as (&S
18)FE fEﬁi"Jgﬂﬁl)\&Eﬁ*&’éﬁizli
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BRI

—mEFZA=1+—HILtFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. ZTHER#)
Segment assets and liabilities SEHEENEE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by T AREEZREDHE D ZEEM
reportable segments. BB\ o
International
air and Manufacture
sea freight Securities and sales Trading of
forwarding trading of coal goods Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERHZER BER
BLEE R5EH HERR EEER by
TR TR TR TER TR
At 31 December 2014 R=B-Mm&
t=A=1-H
ASSETS EE
Segment assets PHEE 1,051 98,030 36,639 101,225 236,945
Unallocated corporate assets RAOREBEE 158,878
Total assets AEBE 395,823
LIABILITIES af
Segment liabilities PHAR 1,962 - 21,860 157 23,979
Unallocated corporate liabilities APEEEERE 48,298
Total liabilities BEAE 72,277
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &;% —

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. "EESR (&)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued) THEEREE®
International
air and Manufacture
sea freight Securities and sales
forwarding trading of coal Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B A 22 FER
B LEEE BHEE SHE B IR HEt
FAT FAT FHET FHT
At 31 December 2013 R-EBE—=F
t=A=+—-8H
ASSETS BE
Segment assets HEEE 1,037 22,994 93,582 117,613
Unallocated corporate assets AOBEREE 229,145
Total assets BEBE 346,758
LIABILITIES aE
Segment liabilities DEEE 2,037 = 23,600 25,637
Unallocated corporate liabilities KO EEEEE 61,306
Total liabilities BEBE 86,943

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and
allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable segments other than
available-for-sale investments, pledged bank deposit, bank
balances and cash, the equipment of head office and part of

other receivables; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary, tax
liabilities and part of other payables.

- BRAUHERE  SERRITER
RITESRRES  ERFRIR
wRE D Bt W RIRSN - PIA
BEOIRERESH &

- BHBARFERERER M
R E R EB D B Al A SRS
FIERBEEINRERS D
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. 7EBER #)
Other segment information Hih o a8

International

air and Manufacture
sea freight  Securities and sale Trading
forwarding trading of coal of goods Unallocated Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRMZER BER
BLEE #5EE HERRK BEEEm AAE st

TR TET TR TR TR TR

Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-Z-N&E
+=A=+-A
LEE

Amounts included in the measure of FtE/HEEHH
segment profit or loss or segment  EEEETALZ

assets: &8
Amortisation of prepaid lease BRESEH

payment - - 279 - - 279
Additions to non-current assets NEFRBEE

(Note) (BifzE) - - 780 1,222 2,358 4,360
Impairment loss on property, L ER ST

plant and equipment RERE - - 16,883 - - 16,883
Depreciation of property, plantand %)% « B & 3%/&

equipment e 3 - 2,022 43 450 2,523
Write-off of property, plant and WEME  BER

equipment R - - - - 3 13
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RHHBARZ

(Note 30) Yoz (Fi35E30) - - - - (53) (53)
Realised loss on held for trading BERHIREZ

investments BEEREE - 5414 - - - 5,414
Recovery of bad debt written off ~ WEIE i - - (143) - - (143)

Unrealised gain on fair value change #{EX 5% 4& 2 A&
on held for trading investments HATEZE)
g - (8,349) - - - (8,349)

Amounts reqularly provided to the  EHimF BLERE
chief operating decision maker ERMEENGE
but not included in the measure ABBEREDE

of segment profit or loss or BERARBIA

segment assets: e
Interest income FBMA - (213) (3) - (815) (1,031)
Interest expenses FERAZ - - - - 2,207 2,207
Income tax expenses (credit) FEREZ (EE) - - - 332 (1 331

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and goodwill. Wiz ERBEETRIETLEREREE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ
8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. ZEBER (&)
Other segment information (Continued) Hi o ZBER ()
International
air and Manufacture
sea freight Securities and sale
forwarding trading of coal Unallocated Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRMER ER
BLEE EHEE HERR RAR @5t
THT T FHT THT THT
Year ended 31 December 2013 Bz2-2-=
+=A=+-H
LLEE

Amounts included in the measure of  FFENBEZIDBEE
segment profit or loss or segment  EEHAZSH

assets:

Amortisation of prepaid lease BHE#H

payment - - 213 - 213
Additions to non-current assets RNEERBEE i)

(Note) - - 13,274 - 13,274
Impairment loss on goodwil HEREBSE - - 36,729 - 36,729
Impairment loss on property, plant ~ #1% - BiERRETE

and equipment - - 24,642 - 24,642
Impairment loss on trade receivables  [E(TE 5 EREERE = = 2,200 = 2,200
Depreciation of property, plantand %1% « BB RRETE

equipment 5 - 6,569 169 6,743
Allowance for inventories FERE - - 4,074 - 4,074
Trade and other payables written B3 R A e 508

back el (3.137) - - - (3,137)
Realised loss on held for trading BERGREL

investments 2B EE - 332 - - 332
Unrealised loss on fair value change %%{’E*%?xﬁz%*iﬁ

on held for trading investments NHEZFER - 5,554 - - 5,554

Amounts regularly provided to the ~ FHiRT BLERKER
chief operating decision maker but ~ HER:HEH HiEH
not included in the measure of AP PAERRAE
segment profit or loss or segment  AZ 4

assets:
Interest income FERA - (200) (28) (1,086) (1,314)
Interest expenses FEFY - - 8 2,584 2,592
Income tax credit FriEfiEe - (993) (2,006) = (2,999)

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and goodwill. Mzt JERBEETBIEITHEREREE -
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. ZTHER#)
Revenue from major products and services FEEMERRKE 2z W
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major NTAEAREREEERERE 2 KED
products and services: #r
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF =%
FHET FHET
Trading of goods VG 260,767 -
Manufacture and sales of coal RUE M EHE R IR 9,236 40,620
Provision of international air and sea REBERE M ZE &8 EEERS
freight forwarding services 5,868 6,745
Dividend income from held for trading BERXFHREZIREWA
investments 405 374
276,276 47,739
Geographical information @& R
The manufacture and sales of coal are carried out in the PRC. ANEE B R AP B 1T R GE R B B 3
Trading of goods is carried out in the PRC and Hong Kong. % R REBETEESm - R
International air and sea freight forwarding services are carried out g~ bR KRR EMNEST B BR A 2= &
in Singapore, North and South America. Trading of securities is BLEEEER RAEBETESFEESR
carried out in Hong Kong. % o
Information about the Group’s revenue from external customers REEINPRF W B R IR & R
is presented based on the location of the operations of the 25| c REEIERBEEER NIZREE
customers. Information about the Group’s non-current assets is FrEi@ 27 -

presented based on the geographical location of assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 8. oHER#)
i EE R (E)

Geographical information (Continued)

Revenue from external

customers Non-current assets

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

INEBE P S FREBEE
=E-mFE —T=F ZT-WmF T =F
FH&xT FHIT FHET THT

North and South America b= R EZEM 3,230 3,435 -

PRC =8 172,728 40,620 17,542 35,749
Hong Kong BB 97,680 374 2,197 584
Singapore o 2,638 3,310 3 6
276,276 47,739 19,742 36,339

Note: Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments and goodwill.

Mzt ERBEETBEAILEREREE -

Information about major customers FEEFEHR
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing AR B P AR 2 Was (h 7 5 B A U e
over 10% of the overall revenue of the Group is as follows: #10% :
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—MEF - ='——¢
— Customer A’ =12 131,480 N/A*
— Customer B’ =V 97,275 N/A%
— Customer C' =T 32,012 N/A*
— Customer D? —BFET?2 N/A3 19,378
— Customer E? = N/A3 12,382
— Customer F? —BFEE2 N/A3 5,254
i Revenue from trading of goods segment REBEERMDHZHEA
2 Revenue from manufacturing and sales of coal segment RIS RHERRD B ZBA
g The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the total M A REAE RS T EIB10% ©

revenue of the Group.

& Trading of goods commenced in 2014.

HERAN -SSR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ
OTHER INCOME 9. HMWA
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-mF =5
THET THT
Trade and other payable written back B 5 [ Fo M e IR R [E] - 3,137
Interest income F B U A 1,031 1,314
Net exchange gain b H s F 58 - 1,775
Government grants (Note) R 5 7 B (BT ) 16 47
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (Note 30) & —RIME A 72 Wz 53 =
Recovery of bad debt written off g 5] 2 s 2 BR 143 -
Sundry income HETE A 200 43
1,443 6,316
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2014, a government grant of iz - BME—E—NE+-_A=+—HBILEE ' K
approximately HK$16,000 (2013: HK$47,000) was granted to the Group EBBF I — B ER TR ESKRET
in relation to the job credit scheme in Singapore on the condition that the B #116,0008 70 (=T —=4F : 47,0007
Group has made CPF contributions in Singapore during the year. TL) ° AEBERF AR 2R RATE
SEFEIHR - MERSZBUNHE
. FINANCE COSTS e -
10. B & B A
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-INF =
FET FHET
Interests on: UTEEBEZHE :
— loan from a non-controlling interest of — — WB A FFEERIERE X
a subsidiary 2,207 2,552
— others —HAh - 40

2,207 2,592
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

11.LOSS BEFORE TAX 1. BRBIATES 18
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F —F—=F
FET FAT
Loss before tax has been arrived at after B BIE R T HGR
charging: TF B BEEE :
Staff costs BB
— directors’ emoluments (Note 12(a)) —EEMe (FFE12@) 5,637 1,645
— other staff costs — H b {E 8 AR 5,921 5,588
— share based payment (excluding — ARG X+
directors’ emoluments) (TEEESH:) 1,393 =
— retirement benefits scheme —RIRERIETEI R
contributions, excluding directors TERIEERHK 255 175
Total staff costs EEXRALRE 13,206 7,408
Auditor’s remuneration Z BT & 1,080 1,157
Depreciation of property, M - HWERERETE
plant and equipment 2,523 6,743
Amortisation of prepaid lease payment TR E & B8 279 213
Compensation paid for cancellation BEH— S E R B E
of a sale agreement (included in (FEATTBR A AT H)
administrative and other expenses) - 2,297
Write-off of property, plant and equipment HEE#% - BF KR 13 -
Net foreign exchange loss HINGE 5 185 58 612 =
Cost of inventories recognised R RRAZ 2 FEKE
as expenses 261,025 51,609
Allowance for inventories FEREGIABEKRKAENA)
(included in cost of sales) - 4,074
Minimum lease payments under operating &EHEX 2 &EHEE
lease charges 2,934 1,939
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 1N.EERTHEASHERES

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'’ [

EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (a) EETRITHARMNES
emoluments

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 14 (2013: 5) BEffEMNTFI48(Z2E—=

directors were as follows: SR)EEZAZHMESIT ¢
Retirement
benefits Share
Salaries and scheme based Total
Fees other benefits  contributions payment  emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BICERE
we HERHMET 7R DR %A ame
T TiEn TiEx TiEn FiEn
Year ended 31 December 2014 B2-E-METZA
Zt-ALEE
Executive directors HIES
Mr. Huang Bodi (redesignated to EREEA(RNZE-I
non-executive director on ErAtARRER
16 July 2014) IHES) - 696 9 - 705
Mr. Du Chunyu (resigned on HEREE(RZE-N
5 September 2014) ENRRAET) - 125 - - 125
Mr. Li Yang (appointed on ZHREE(R-E-NE
5 September 2014) NATAEZRMA) - 309 - 347 656
Mr. Li Xiaolong (appointed on TEELE(R-Z-N
29 October 2014) F+A-thH
BZE) - 315 - 347 662
Mr. Yin Shibo (appointed on FORTERZZ—H
16 July 2014) FLATRREZRR) - 334 - 347 681
Mr. Tang Hon Kwo (appointed on e rE(R-2-N
16 October 2014) AT ABEEE) - 201 5 347 553
Mr. Kuk Peter Z (appointed on 16 BEEE(R=F-RE
July 2014 and redesignated to tATAREZER
non-executive director on RZE-MENRE
5 September 2014) RATZFHTES) - 296 3 - 299
Mr. Wang Jian (appointed on TREE(R-Z-mE
16 October 2014) tAT/BEZf) - 104 - M 1
- 2,380 17 1,735 4132
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

N.EERTHAZMESRES
M & ()

(a) EBRITHARMNE &)

Retirement
benefits Share
Salaries and scheme based Total
Fees other benefits  contributions payment  emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BICERE
e HeRHMER 73 DRB %A &He
T TiEn TiEn TiEx TiEn
Independent non-executive directors B FEH{TES
Mr. Zhou Ming Chi (resigned on BRBEE(R T
29 October 2014) E+AZTNREHT) 100 - - - 100
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel (resigned BfHa (W30
on 5 September 2014) ENATBE) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Zhang Liang (resigned on 16 FRAE(R-E-IE
October 2014) TATABEE) 100 - - - 100
Mr. Chan Fong Kong Francis BARIEE(R=Z—m
(appointed on ENARRERT)
5 September 2014) 39 - - - 39
Mr. Chen Zhenguo (appointed on BRELE (R0
29 October 2014) E+A-tNA
EZf) 2 - - - 2
Mr. Yuan Guangming (appointed on ~ REFEE(R=Z—
16 October 2014) EtATRREZELE) 25 - - - 25
385 - - - 385
Non-executive directors FiTES
Mr. Huang Bogi (redesignated BlEEEE(R =20
from executive director on 16 EX AT BEHT
July 2014 and resigned on 16 ESHAEIE
October 2014) ERN-E-IE
TATAREE) 10 - - - 0
Mr. Kuk Peter Z (redesignated from hEEE(R-E-TE
executive director on NARARHRITES
5 September 2014) HE) 697 - 6 347 1,050
767 - 6 347 1,120
Total @t 1,152 2,380 23 2,082 5,637
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &% ==&

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES'’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s
emoluments (Continued)

11%%& THHREBNERES

/2
( 2 )
Mz (75 )

(a) EERTHARME &)

Retirement
benefits Share
Salaries and scheme based Total
Fees  other benefits  contributions payment emoluments
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RINER

we HekEbER {5 PR ZA ZMe
THL b TAT TAL TAL

Year ended 31 December 2013 Bz-g-c=k

TZAZ+-ALEE
Executive directors HIES

Mr. Huang Bogi ERBLE - 1,120 15 = 1,135
Mr. Du Chunyu HEREE - 150 - - 150
- 1,270 15 - 1,285

Independent non-executive directors B EHTES
Ms. Wong Yan Ki, Angel Bt 120 - - - 120
Mr. Zhang Liang e 120 - - - 120
Mr. Zhou Ming Chi bt 120 - - - 120
360 2 2 2 360
Total @ 360 1,270 15 = 1,645

Mr. Li Xiaolong is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for services
rendered by him as the chief executive during the year ended
31 December 2014. Before Mr. Li Xiaolong was appointed
as the chief executive, the Group had no title as the chief
executive. Given that the size and structure of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2013, the directors of the
Company were of the view that though there was no chief
executive, the balance of power and authority was ensured
by the operation of the Group, which comprises experienced
individuals and meetings between the directors and the
management are held from time to time to discuss issues
relating to operation of the Group.

TERLENBADAITHE
ﬁ L LR e B ERE
—mE+=—_A=+—H81t
if‘i‘*ﬁ'r@i(ZHﬁ% o MEBEBE KA
BEZEBTHRAHZA  A5&E
WRBDETHAHE B - ERA
CEEEHE-_T—=F+_A8
=+ BHUEFEZRERERE
ARBEZERE  BREMETR
BE - EORBEENTEDBEB
REBEESERE  MASEE
Al E&ABMALTHAK  BES
HEBEE® Tﬁﬁtaﬁuﬁﬁ
ERAANEREEE
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—EF—H=1—HIFZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES’

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s

emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors and chief executive of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments paid by the
Group during the two years ended 31 December 2014 and
2013. No emoluments were paid or payable by the Group
to the directors and chief executive of the Company as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as
compensation for loss of the office during the two years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

The remuneration of directors of the Company is determined
by the Board upon the recommendation of the remuneration
committee having regard to the performance of individual and

market trends.

(b) Employees’ emoluments

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2013: one) were directors of the Company
whose emoluments are set out in (a) above. The aggregate
emoluments of the remaining one (2013: four) individuals

were as follows:

12§$& THRIMERES

(a)

(b)

BEERITHARMS
REE-_ZT—NER_T—=F

+=-—R=+— Etﬁﬂiﬁ’
WEARAES RITHRABHNE
SRENEEAME - REEZ
TE-—NER_FT—=ZF+_A
—+—BIEREEE  NEBEW
BRAANAAESERITEHARDT
KBTS AR S| % E B A
B EAKEMBAREEZ 2E
SAERBERAE -

ARAREZZHMEHESRERN

FMEEE2EEEEARRLR
MEBE CRRRET -
EEMS

AEERIEAERHFALTEER
ARANBER(ZT—=F: —
#) o BEZHE RN L3 (a)#
neEB—BHEEFAL(ZF
—=F:W1R) M @EEsIm

T
2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E-—mE —z—=
FExT FHT
Salaries and other benefits e RE AT 813 1,805
Share based payments expense AR D 2SR 2 347 -
Retirement benefits scheme RIRE R T EIE K
contributions 18 36
1,178 1,841
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S NR.ESRTHEAIMERES
EMOLUMENTS AND EMPLOYEES' <€)
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (Continued) (b) EEME &)
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HEMeE NYEEA -
2014 2013
No. of No. of
employees employees
—E-mEF —E—=F
EEAH EE A
HK$nil to HK$ 1,000,000 £ %1,000,000%7C - 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 0% 1,500,000/ 7T 1 =
During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013, REBEZE-_ZT-—NER_-_ZFT—=4F
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors +-—A=1+—HIFREFE &
of the Company and the five highest paid individuals as SEVYEMARRESRAAK
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as = AT AR 3] 1% & 0
compensation for loss of office. None of directors of the BAREBSEARENBEAEER
Company and the employees waived or agreed to waive any ZEESNIEAERBE - REE
emoluments paid by the Group during the years ended 31 —E-NER-_FT—=F1+_A
December 2014 and 2013. ST —HEREFE  WEAR

AEEREEREXFRERESL
g
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

13.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT)

13. FRrEBiR< (E %)

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—Z—F —T—=F
THET FHET
Current tax: = HARIIE ¢

PRC Enterprise Income Tax SR 332 -

(Over) under provision in prior periods BEEARE (REE s ) BB T2 -
Hong Kong BEBMGH )] (993)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax B 1 2 P ASFY - 146
(1) (847)
Deferred taxation (Note 27) EERIE (M15E27) - (2,152)
331 (2,999)

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group did not have assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law")
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1 January 2008 onwards.

Taxation arising in Singapore and United State of America is
calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

HRAEERBEE_T—NFR_

—=ft-HA=1— Eti&l?ﬁ%%
B A - B 5L BB N 1S AT B B
1% o

BIERRECEMBRIA([REREH
&D&m%% m&zﬁmum HR Y
WBAsBE T N\F—A—BRZH
RE25% ©

RETINS K =RELE 2 FRIBR A B
R BT RS ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &% ==&

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CREDIT) (CONTINUED)

The tax charge (credit) for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as follows:

P e

—EF—H=1—HIFE

ma

13. FrERiBA T (&) ()

FRzHERX (KR BgeBaks
ER SRS 2 BB BT ERE RN T

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-F ZE—=F
FET FHT
Loss before tax BR%% A& 18 (28,010) (103,326)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of AR TSR35 K 25 %
25% (2013:25%) (ZZ—=%F : 25%)&t &
ZTiIE (7,003) (25,832)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for RNEFHFE S 2 HBHE
tax purpose 6,360 11,275
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax HRB A Z B2
purpose (377) (141)
Tax effect of utilisation of tax loss FRBEER M2 (1,172) (154)
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible ARIERZ TS 18 N v H0BR B A
temporary difference not recognised ER BB RE 2,524 11,513
Over provision in prior year BAFEBEEE (1) (847)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries FEHfh alJAME R AL 2 B A A
operating in other jurisdictions FRATRBE 2 - 1,187
Income tax expenses (credit) for the year SRS (ER) 331 (2,999)
Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 27. RIET IR IE B M 5127
DIVIDEND 14. R &
No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended 31 ARNAREEZE-_ZT—NWF+=_A= —I—*
December 2014, nor has any dividend been proposed since the end 5| ﬁirlﬁ/ﬁﬁii IRAE (A% 8
of the reporting period (2013: nil). S| #sEiHHXLA)KIﬂﬁ,)KEEHHi (_
T—Z=F &\
LOSS PER SHARE 15. B REE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$17,538,000 (2013: HK$76,162,000) and on the weighted
average number of 2,526,270,078 (2013: 2,431,670,845) ordinary
shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share is same as basic loss per share for the years
ended 31 December 2014 and 2013. The computation of diluted
earnings per share does not assume the exercise of the Company’s
outstanding share options because the exercise price of those
options is higher than the average market price for shares for the
years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.

EREAREEIRIBEAR A HE ARMA

FREIEL17,538,0008 T (ZFE—=

£ 476,162,000 7T ) & FE A D 3

17 & @A N4 15 802,526,270, 078Hx
—E =1 :2,431,670,845/%)z

BE-_T DNER=-FT—=%1+_H

=+ HIEFE  SREEER - BF
REREAER BE2-_F-—NOFk—

T—=F+"A=t—BLEFE #R
ARAHARITEBREZTEES R
D FEHE - HatESREEE R
EBRJEZSERRETE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 &;% —

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

16. 1% - BERRE

Plant and Furniture Office Motor
Buildings machinery  and fixtures  equipment vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BF RBEREE GAREE HAZRE RE st
THL THL THL THL THL THL
COST A
At 1 January 2013 R-E-=%5-f-H 45,885 10,807 150 130 4,110 61,082
Exchange realignment 5 A% 2,355 543 8 (4) 87 2,989
Additions NE 67 46 - - 340 453
Written off ik - - - 2) - 2)
At 31 December 2013 and W_E—=F
1 January 2014 +-A=+-Ak
—Z-NmE-A—H 48,307 11,396 158 124 4,537 64,522
Exchange realignment X A% (1,055) (249) B) (5) (47) (1,359)
Additions NE 629 - 279 179 3,122 4,209
Derecognised on disposal of a RERANLERBAR
subsidiary (Note 30) (KfzE30) - = - - (829) (829)
Written off b - - - (16) - (16)
At 31 December 2014 RZE—ME
+ZA=1—H 47,881 11,147 434 282 6,783 66,527
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ ZFEHERAE
AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2013 R-ZT-=%-A-H 5711 1,329 31 (l 1,696 8,878
Exchange realignment 0 5 358 79 1 - 20 458
Provided for the year FREE 5,135 1,130 31 4 443 6,743
Eliminated on written off e - - - ) - 2)
Impairment loss recognised FRRERZREEE
for the year 20,358 4,284 - - - 24,642
At 31 December 2013 and RZZ-=%
1 January 2014 +-A=+-Ak
“Z-RmE-A—H 31,562 6,822 63 113 2,159 40,719
Exchange realignment 5 R (702) (152) (1) (5 (14) (874)
Provided for the year FEREE 917 631 38 19 918 2,523
Eliminated on disposal of a HENBA R
subsidiary (Note 30) (MizE30) = = = = (332) (332)
Eliminated on written off izl g - - - 3) - 3)
Impairment loss recognised FRRRAEER
for the year 13,628 3,255 - - - 16,883
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-Mm¥
+-A=1—H 45,405 10,556 100 124 2,731 58,916
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2014 RZZ-mF
+-A=1-H 2,476 591 334 158 4,052 7,611
At 31 December 2013 RZT-=%
+ZA=1-H 16,745 4,574 95 11 2,378 23,803
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful life and rates per
annum:
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of the
lease, or 25 years

Plant and machinery 10%

10% — 33.33%

10% — 20%

16.67% —33.33%

Furniture and fixtures
Office equipment
Motor vehicles

As at 31 December 2014, the building ownership certificates
of all buildings situated in the PRC under medium lease have
not been granted by relevant government authorities with the
aggregate carrying values of approximately HK$2,476,000 (2013:
HK$16,745,000). In the opinion of the directors of the Company
based on the advice from the legal adviser, the absence of building
ownership certificates to these buildings does not impair the value
of the relevant buildings to the Group.

In light of the poor performance of the manufacture and sales of
coal operation, an impairment assessment has been performed
by the directors of the Company to determine the recoverable
amount of these property, plant and equipment. The directors of
the Company engaged Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal
and Advisory Limited (“Jones Lang”), a qualified valuer not
connected with the Group, to perform a business valuation of
the manufacture and sale of coal operation. Having regard to
the future plan of the Group and the valuation performed by
Jones Lang, impairment loss of approximately HK$16,883,000
(2013: HK$24,642,000) was made to the carrying amounts of the
property, plant and equipment for the year ended 31 December
2014. The recoverable amounts of approximately HK$4,235,000
(2013: HK$22,999,000) of the relevant assets have been
determined on the basis of their value-in-use. The pre-tax discount
rate in measuring the amounts of value-in-use was 14.00% (2013:
16.54%).

.vTx 7JL ﬁﬂ#&%\% Bﬁ

—EF—H=1—HIFE

16. ¥ - BMERRE )

Bz - BEMRERBREERE

IR AT ERGIRITE ¢

EF HEFH=—+AHF - I
BRE R

ME RigsE  10%

REEEE  10% -33.33%

WAERE  10% - 20%

E 16.67% — 33.33%

R-ZE—MNF+-_A=1+—H A@EK
FEEBPT M R 1R B B AT A 1A B4z AR BB
BOHBZEFZMERMEEMR - £42
BREEA) 52,476,000 T(ZFE—=
F 116,745,000/ 7T) ° REBEAEREMN
BR ARREZERAE  KEDZSE
FZUEMBRRTESAEBGRIE
FEERE -

R EERIHE B 2 RIFATDE -
RARESEETRETHUNEEY
X BEREBZAKESE - AQ
REECRERAERERE, SEK
HEMMPEBITEETHRERERA
A(IMHE]) BEREERBEEELE
THBME - KB RAEE 2 K KETE
R EMETZMHE  NARHEEE
—E—NNFE+_A=+—HLEFEZ
Y - BEREEZREAEELRE
E51E4916,883,0008 L (T — =4 :
24,642,000 7T) ° *EE%%FZ‘M&Z@
CREDBEFERAEBFEEE - 8 &
T—ME+—_F=+—HItFEE - *HE%
BEZAWE L) 54,235,000 7T
—EF—=% :22,999,000/T) ° it=
FHEESEMAMRAIIEER14%
ZE—=%:16.54%) °
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17.

18.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENT

17. 58

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-IOF —T—=fF
THET THT

Analysed for reporting purposes as EREMIEL Z DT
Current asset BB E 279 282
Non-current asset JEMENE E 12,131 12,536
12,410 12,818

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s prepaid lease payment
represented a medium term lease land in the PRC with the carrying
amount of approximately HK$12,410,000 (2013: HK$12,818,000).

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

R-ZT—MFE+_-_A=+—H ~"&EE
ZHENHESE—MRPR 2R EHEL -
BREEXA12,410,0008 T (82 —=

£ 12,818,000/ 7T) °

18. T HHERE

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-mEF —E=5F
FTEx FAT
Equity instruments RATH

Listed equity investment in London, R ETERRE -

at fair value (Note i) RAFEE (D) 6,739 =
Unlisted investment in fund, at fair FELEMHESEE

value (Note ii) RATEE (i) 38,873 =
45,612 =

Unlisted equity securities in Hong Kong, ~ R&EBHIE FHRAB 5
at cost (Note iii) YR AT & (B 5Eiii) 38,250 38,250
Less: impairment losses recognised B BRERZREEIE (30,750) (30,750)
7,500 7,500
53,112 7,500
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

iii)

The Group's listed equity investment represented 11.34% equity interest
in a company listed in Alternative Investment Market of London Stock
Exchange. The listed equity investment is measured at fair value and is
classified as level 1 fair value measurement (see note 5(c)). Fair value loss
of the investment approximately HK$761,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in
other comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2014.

The unlisted investment in funds is measured at fair value and is classified
as level 2 fair value measurement (see note 5(c)). Fair value gain of the
investments approximately HK$5,373,000 (2013: nil) was recognised in
other comprehensive income during the year ended 31 December 2014.

In 2002, the Group, through an acquisition of a wholly-owned subsidiary,
acquired 30,000,000 promoters’ shares in Beijing Beida Jade Bird Universal
Sci-Technology Company (“BBJB”) (the “Promoters’ Shares”) of RMBO.1
each at a consideration of HK$38,250,000, which is equivalent to 2.53%
of total issued share capital (including H shares and Promoters’ Shares) of
BBJB.

BBJB is a joint stock company with limited liability incorporated in the
PRC with its H shares listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange (the “GEM Board”). The Promoters’ Shares were unlisted share
capital issued by BBJB when it was initially listed on the GEM Board in
2000. According to the Company Law in the PRC, the Promoters’ Shares
were not transferable within three years from the date of incorporation of
BBJB on 29 March 2000. In the absence of active market, the Promoters’
Shares are measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting
period because the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant
that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that their fair values
cannot be measured reliably.

The directors of the Company were of the opinion that the recoverable
amount of the available-for-sale investments was significantly below its
original cost, an impairment loss of HK$30,750,000 was recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
in prior years. At 31 December 2014, the carrying amount of available-for-
sale investments of approximately HK$7,500,000 (2013:HK$7,500,000),
net of impairment loss was available-for-sale investments of approximately
HK$30,750,000 (2013: HK$30,750,000).

GEE

iii)

e PR ERR MR

—EF—H=1—HIFE

18. AHERE®)

REBZ FTEEREERABARS M

BREREMH EM R AP A11.34%MRHE -

EEREREAATENERSEAE—H

RFEFE(RKFES) - BE=Z—HMF

TZA=+-HIEFEE  REZATEER

761,0008 (=T —=4F : T)REMEE
Wz iR ©

FEMESRENAFEFERDRRE -
BAFEFE(RRES(C)) - BE—F—N
FH-HA=1T—RLFE REZAVER

#5,373,0008 (2 —=F : T) RN EAM
2EREER -
R-ZZ_F AKEZREE-—H2E

Bt B A & - LA 38,250,000 7% T (B BB A
30,000,00083t Tt A E RIEFRERND A
BAR([IEAT R EREEARK0.17T
ZERRARMD ([BRARG 1) - BERIER
SEREFTRAEE(BEHRREREAR
1%)2.53% °

IERFRRATEEMKRILZEBEREE
RAA) - BHERFERE X AT AR (TRIZEAR ) £
o BRARDRIERERNR _ZZTTFH
IRFERIZEAR EMBF 31T 2 3F EMARAR © 1R1%
FRERANE - BREARDBLAT/IN=F
TRE= -+ N BEMKIZEF =FAT
BEE - ANRZIARTS - HERARDR
BEMRZNABRERE BRAEAT
EfFTHEEAK  AARESAREENE
WETBEEARNDZAFE -

ARREZRE  AIHERE ZAHE
CHEERERKAE  MERBEFE
EfReEEREME2E KRR RERDRES
830,750,000/ 7 - R =T — M F + =
B=+—B A EREZEEENR
7,500,000/ 7T (=F — =4 : 7,500,000
JT) ¢ B P B K H R EE H 4930,750,000
BIL(=ZZT—=% : 30,750,000/ T) °
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18. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

19.

(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group's available-for-
sale investments that are denominated in currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below:

18. T HERE #)

HE_ZT-NFER-_ZT—=F+_4
=+ HUIEREEE  AEEREER
BEAJELA AR E TR 2 NREE AT E

R
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—T—F —F—=
FET FH&T
GBP HigE 6,739 =
usD e 22,851 =
GOODWILL 19. &
HK$'000
AT
COST B
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and 2014 R—ZE—=%—H—A8 "
—E—=F+=-A=+—HBE
—T-E+-A=+—H 36,729
IMPAIRMENT VERIE]
At 1 January 2013 R=—ZE—=%—HF—H -
Impairment of goodwill EER(E 36,729
At 31 December 2013 and 2014 R-Z—=%F+—_fA=+—8K
—ZT-—NFE+=-—A=+—H 36,729

CARRYING VALUE
At 31 December 2014

At 31 December 2013

fRmEE
R-ZT-—MOF+-_H=1—H

R=—ZF—=F+=-A=+—H
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

19. GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

Goodwill from acquisition of Suntech Worldwide Limited
("Suntech”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “Suntech
Group”) was allocated to the Group’s CGU of manufacture and
sale of coal.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, a full impairment loss of
approximately HK$36,729,000 had been recognised in respect of
the goodwill arising from the acquisition of Suctech Group.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
In assessing the need for impairment of goodwill, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of individual CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated by reference to, amongst other
things, the existing operation and future prospects of the CGU. No
impairment assessment of goodwill performed for the year ended
31 December 2014 as the goodwill was fully impaired during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

The basis of the recoverable amount of the CGU and the major
underlying assumptions for the year ended 31 December 2013
were summarised below:

The recoverable amount of the CGU under the manufacture and
sale of coal operation was zero and had been determined on the
basis of value-in-use calculation with reference to a valuation
performed by Jones Lang. That calculation used cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a 5 year period, and pre-tax discount rate of 16.54%.
Cash flows beyond the 5 year period had been extrapolated using
zero growth rate. This growth rate was based on the relevant
industry growth forecasts and did not exceed the average long-
term growth rate for the relevant industry.

19. 88 )

WEEERRERAR([EE]) RE
MBAR (R EEREDELZRE
BEDREASERERHER KT
TELEM -

BE_ZT—=H+_-_A=+—HIHF
E - EntNEEEEEMELEEERR
2 EURE 1B 436,729,000/ 7T °

AEESFANETRETEE AR
BORERETTRERR - REFHREER
BF  AEE2R(ETeE)BReEL
@LLEE.HUE.@HX/R&?RI%R fhat2&

DEBEZBIRECELEM 2 ATKRE
TR -BHE_T-NF+_A=+—H
EFE - ORBETEHERENS B2
—E-NFET_A=+—RHLFE &
ZBE2HRE -

HE_Z—=F+-_H=1+—H ®R=a
ErEfrkEeE s RERFEZRA
BRRBAMNT

HREERBEXBIBE N RSEESN
ARE&EATRIZRBAEEIT LG
B BHEAEBEAEEEETE - %8
TABEREREHEREE 2 AFH
MBTEE - ARBKRBAIAEER £16.54%
u+ Ziﬁimbg?ﬁﬁ” ﬂﬂE/HH%QZE,%@

/}\LE'@E)EH?}L-ETTE o fF 1R R Thi%
RITHELRIEAGTE - WHEBHARET

%Z?i’:}ﬁﬁﬂiﬁ$ g
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

20.INVENTORIES 20. 78
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z—lF —FT—=
FE&xT T
Raw materials and consumables RAE KB 7,386 11,468
Finished goods BURK G 3,518 3,534
10,904 15,002
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. B2 R EfhEWFIE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-mF —F—=
FE&xT T
Trade receivables B 5 W IB 112,352 33,194
Bills receivables B EE - 12,888
Less: allowance for impairment B BB RERGIERERE
of trade receivables (3,602) (3,649)
Trade and bills receivables B SR GE M ERER 108,750 42,433
Prepayments T FRIE 1,506 1,550
Deposits and other receivables e REM EWRFRIA 3,656 50,644

113,912 94,627
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21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group allows an average credit period normally ranging from
30 days to 180 days (2013: 30 days to 180 days) to its trade
customers. The average credit period of the bills receivables is
within 60 days. The following is an aged analysis of trade and

e PR ERR MR

—EF—H=1—HIFE

21. EZ R EMEBWRIE 2

AEBRTESEPZFHEER K
M F30HE180H ==—EE-SOH
E180R) 2@ c U TARBERR(L
A& BN EEE%E%@)&?*TEIH\HEEJ

bills receivables (net of allowance for doubtful debt) presented ZEWE SZIE (B NG REEG) R
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period, BT o ANE B —%%4)50,526,00075
which approximates the respective revenue recognition date. T2 E 5 EINGRIBERS A M LA T @A
A trade receivable of the Group amounting to approximately o
HK$50,526,000 is secured by the ordinary share of the debtor.
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—g-mE  —F-=F
THET FET
0 — 30 days 0&30H 51,054 686
31 - 60 days 31260H 49,505 134
61 — 90 days 61290H 4,159 16,909
91 — 120 days 91£120H - 954
121 - 180 days 121£180H - 1,445
Over 180 days HHiB180H 4,032 22,305
Trade and bills receivables B 5 1WA KRR 108,750 42,433

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of approximately HK$4,032,000 (2013:
HK$22,305,000) which were past due at the end of the reporting
period and for which the Group has not provided for doubtful
debt.

As at 31 December 2013, amount of HK$50,000,000 included in
the deposits, prepayments and other receivables represented the
refundable investment deposits paid to certain independent third
parties for a proposed acquisition. The proposed acquisition was
terminated and deposit was refunded to the Group according
to a termination agreement during the year ended 31 December
2014 (note 32). Details of the said subscription and reasons for
termination were set out in the Company’s announcement dated
13 June 2013, 9 August 2013, 16 August 2013, 30 August 2013,
13 January 2014, 21 January 2014 and 24 January 2014.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to a wide range of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

AEEE FENGIEE ST BIEERA
B4 /54,032,000 T(=ZF—=4F :
22,305,000 7T ) Z FEUBR X - 5A¢&ﬂt
BiRE@E - BARSEWERRETR
s o

R-ZE—=%F+-A=+—01 &%
- ENREREMEKRKES
50,000,000 LiEME TR E=FH
YR ZBEFEREZATRERER
L BEHE_ZE-—NE+_A=1+—
HIEFEMKIEHZ - LazrsllEe
R e BRETALE - 5
RHRBEERKRIERE S - 28
AR ARIBHAE=ZSE—=F-~A+=

B —&2—=F#/\ANLH - —ZE—=F
ANA+<B - = ::*—i/\ﬂ +8 -
—E—MOF—A+=H ZF—WOF—
A=t+—BF=_ZF—NmF—A=+MAH
Z AR o

RimE IR E 2 B 5 R UGRIE S M

WY BRALHEZZRZEP -
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21.

BRI

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of trade receivables that were past due but not

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

21. E5 R H MWK (=)

BREREHR(HWARSEREZERR

impaired based on the invoice date at the end of reporting date, Hﬂ)Z?é - HHIE @ B MR E 2 U
which approximately the respective revenue recognition date, is as BRSKERER DATAO T -
follow:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-mF —T—=
THET FHT
Over 180 days HiB180H 4,032 22,305

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related
to a number of independent customers that have a good track

ERHEERE BRERFTSRZER
AEBRARIFEBCHRIBILIES

record with the Group. Based on past experience, the management RRBAERKER  SEEHRE  AREE
believes that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of EEEE AEE  E AR A
these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit a2 E - WEE DL EEAEHIER
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. B -
The movements in allowance for doubtful debts of trade FEURBE = v REEB B FO T -
receivables were as follows:
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—Z-F —E=fF
THET FET
1 January = =g 3,649 1,449
Impairment losses recognised BERRBEEE - 2,200
Exchange realignment D 56, 3 # (47) -
31 December +=-—A=+—H 3,602 3,649
Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses a system to EEMNEMFERH » NEBEA—E
assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit AR TEBERF 288X - WER]

limits by customer. Limits attributed to customers are reviewed on
a regular basis.

BEFZIEERE -
HEZ -

BEFZIEERBTE
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s trade receivables
are determined individually whether they are impaired. The
individually impaired receivables are recognised based on the credit
history of its customers, such as financial difficulties or default
in payments, and current market conditions. An accumulated
allowance for doubtful debts of trade receivables of approximately
HK$3,602,000 (2013: HK$3,649,000) has been recognised during
the year ended 31 December 2014.

As at 31 December 2014 and 2013, the Group’s trade and other
receivables that are denominated in currency other than the

e PR ERR MR

—EF—H=1—HIFE

21. E5 R H MW RIE ()

#Riﬁiﬁﬂﬂf REEIZERIBRRTE
BHREWKERETEARE - @B
A@MEZJ?ELI& ABEKREEP 2EEL
B (40 B 75 [N 2 ok ) BERIE ) KR8 Al T
NER - BHEZT—NNF+_A=1+—
BILFE @ BURERRZREZRERE
#7% 3,602,000 T (=& — = :

3,649,000/ 7T ) B FERR ©

RZE—=F+-A=+—HEZ=ZF
—ME+-A=+—H AEEZH K

functional currency of the relevant group entities are set out below: Hi R IBASEA BB EE TR 21
BEEMEERT -
2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-IOF —T—=F
FTEx FAT
usb ETT 49,316 -
RMB AR 50,526 -
HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS 2. HFEXZRE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-mEF T =5
FET FAT
Held for trading investments: BIERSIEE :
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —REB LT ZRAE 98,030 22,994

Held-for-trading investments are stated at fair value. The fair
value of the listed securities has been determined by reference
to published price quotations in active markets. Gain on fair
value change of held-for-trading investments of approximately
HK$8,349,000 (2013: loss on fair value change of held-for-trading
investments of approximately HK$5,554,000) has been recognised
in profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2014.

BER SR ERAFENEE - LhESH
ZAFETEREFERMIS 2B ERR
BEE HE_ZT-—NFEF+-_A=1+—
AIEFEERKERERFIERISHEK
BNV EEE) 2 W 48,349,000/ 7T
(ZE2—=F : BIERZGHRELRFEZ
E518495,554,000/8 7T ) °
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22.

23.

24,

B SR FR I =T

HELD FOR TRADING INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Group disposed
of certain listed securities and realised loss on held for trading
investments of approximately HK$5,414,000 (2013: HK$332,000)
has been recognised in profit or loss.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT

The bank deposit of approximately HK$59,000 (2013: HK$61,000)
was pledged by the Group for the purpose of issuing a guarantee
by the bank to a service provider for security against default
payment as at 31 December 2014.

The pledged bank deposit with maturity of less than three months
carried at fixed interest rate of 0.25% (31 December 2013: 0.1%)
per annum.

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group and
bank balances that are interest-bearing at prevailing market
interest rates ranging from 0.001% to 1.400% (2013: 0.001% to
1.700%) per annum and have original maturity of three months or
less.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
which are subject to foreign exchange control regulations or not
freely transferable:

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

23.

24,

REBEE-_ZT—NFE+-_A=+—HItF
B AEELEERT EMES @ WEIR
HIEEEIREE8#)5,414,000/8 7T

W B ER (=T — =4 :332,000/8
JC) °
EEFRITER

RZZE-—OF+_A=+—0  £&E
HRIRITFRA59,0008L(—ZF—=
% : 61,0008 7T) © ABRWITAIBRE H
RRAMENNRNZ 2R DER -

ZHIE A= A AR EEFREITER
NEEFHEK025% (=T —=F+=
A=+—H:0.1%):t 8 °
ﬁE'fi—ll\ﬂﬁ%&Iﬁrﬁ
RITEREBESEREASEMBERS

MiR1T#E R - RIRIT B EF|ZE0.001
EZE1.400E(=ZF—=% : 0.001 2%
1.700E):t 5 - BRZIHABE A=A
AT o

RITREBRE S P AN TARINES
15l 35 B BR Bl 3 AN AT B P Al 2 B -

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000

—Z2-F —ZE—=
FHT FH&T

Amounts denominated in: AT P &8 5HE 2 508

HK$ BT 3,247 2,994
RMB AR 746 410
3,993 3,404
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

BANK BALANCES AND CASH (CONTINUED)

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
relevant group entities:

24. SRITHEBR R BE S (@)

RITEBRER S PRI ARIEAREEE
BERZMEERENT

2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000

= -F=
FE&xT FHT
RMB AR 981 =
GBP HigE 486 =
usD ETT 172 =
HK$ BT 3,247 2,994

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

25. B 5 REMBN IR

AT AR HRERRIZERZAHEIZE
& SRARKR DM

2014 2013

HK$’'000 HK$'000

—E-mE —E—=F

FHET FAT

0 — 30 days 0Z230H 450 593
31 - 60 days 31£60H 68 59
61— 90 days 61290H 8 112
Over 90 days @90 H 10,993 13,443
Trade payables FERE 5508 11,519 14,207
Value-added tax payable FETIEET 5,060 4,383
Accrued charges EETE R 3,240 3,986
Other payables H Ath fE T FRIE 12,969 11,926
32,788 34,502

The average credit period on purchases of goods is normally
ranging from 30 days to 90 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled
within the credit timeframe.

LOAN FROM A NON-CONTROLLING
INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY

The amount is unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on
demand. Other than an amount of approximately HK$21,190,000
(2013: HK$36,460,000) which carries interest at 2% (2013: 2%)
over Hong Kong prime rate per annum, the remaining balance is
interest-free.

BEZFHEER MK A30-90H « &
EEBER XAV BEERERRE - BR
FrB N R EE R EEHRES -

26. Mt B~ AR EERER E X

ZHEAEER  EBZUHERARE
KEE - R — 2 A84921,190,000%
TT(ZZE—=4 :36,460,0007T) 2 K
HIRFMNERBERERFEME(=Z
T—=F 2B B rEEHAER

B o
o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

27. DEFERRED TAXATION

The major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and
movements thereof during the current year and prior year are
summarised below:

Accelerated
tax

depreciation Tax losses
HK$'000 HK$'000

7. EFER IR

RAFEER EFERERZEBRIELENIA
BE(BE) REEHBRMAT :

Fair value Fair value

change of change in

property, held for

plant and trading
equipment investments Total

HK$'000 HK$:000 HK$'000
nE - BER BEXZRE

MEBARE RBERE R[EATERD ATELE #ast
T THT THET TR THT
1 January 2013 R-_E—=F—F—H 43 (43) 2,152 - 2,152
(Credit) charge to consolidated BSAZEERR
statement of profit or loss (GPNEILS (6) (2,152) - (2,152)
At 31 December 2013 and R-T—=%F
1 January 2014 ‘I':HEﬂ'—El&
mE—A—H 37 (37) - - -
Charge (credit) to consolidated E%?é%ﬁfaé%%?ﬂ%
statement of profit or loss (3t A) 216 (2,818) = 2,602 =
At 31 December 2014 i it
+-HA=+-H 253 (2,855) - 2,602 -

At 31 December 2014, the Group has estimated unutilised tax
losses of approximately HK$186,537,000 (2013: HK$164,050,000)
available for offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of estimated unutilised tax losses of
approximately HK$17,303,000 (2013: HK$224,000). No deferred
tax asset has been recognised of the remaining tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.

—E+-—A=+—H  &K&=H
Al AR 85 R 20 A1) 2 (B st AR BB R 7%
E5 18 49 /186,537,000 T (—E — =
£ :164,050,000/87T) - AEBE A
TR B) AR A5 B 18 49 17,303,000 7T
(ZE—=4 : 224,000 7T) FERIETE
FRIBEE - AR ARETER B 2% 5k
TR MUK B I AR T S S B AR
RETHIBEE ©
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27. DEFERRED TAXATION (CONTINUED)

The estimated unutilised tax losses of approximately
HK$145,839,000 (2013: HK$144,763,000) may be carried forward
against future taxable income indefinitely under the current tax
legislation in Hong Kong.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in the PRC amounted to approximately HK$22,800,000 (2013:
HK$18,508,000) that will expire within five years from the end of
the reporting period.

The estimated unutilised tax losses attributable to a subsidiary
in Singapore amounted to approximately HK$595,000 (2013:
HK$555,000) of which the use is subject to the agreement of the
tax authority and compliance with certain provision of the tax
legislation in Singapore and may be carried forward against future
taxable income indefinitely.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has deductible
temporary difference of HK$23,470,000 (2013: HK$23,470,000).
No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such
deductible temporary difference as it is not probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect of
temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to approximately HK$50,000 (2013:
nil) as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

.vTx 7JL ﬁﬂ#&%\% Bﬁ

—EF—H=1—HIFE

7. EERIE (&)

fhET AR B) AT 75 E5 18 49 145,839,0007%
TT(ZZF—=% : 144,763,000/ 7T ) iR
BEBRITEAR ER AL - DA
RIRERFLULA o

HErARB AR B ERE SR BN — T B
BRR - BE#22,800,0008 T(=F
— =% : 18,508,000/ 7T) * ENHE
HRERAFERERD °

HETRE AR E IR ER — M
ME AR » AE#A595,0008T(==
—=%F :555,000/70) * BAZERE
EIEALKHBRE « 3 /,\ﬁé%ﬁﬁﬂi)ﬁﬁﬁ
VAR A TIE - AR B4

RIFEBR - ANEBE A AR T &
A= %23,470,0008 L (=T —=4F :
23,470,000 7T) AN AT 82 AT I
R By 2 R ] R S AR A s ) - R

EHZF AR B RERIRELHIA

RERBECEMSRE BT NF—
A—HE  BNHEETRESR BB R
FTiSa M 2 SRS - AR A S BT
B 2 RE 2 e N TR A= BN K R] BE R R
RgRare ZIELH)%IEE‘E$E%EZ$@
HEHE  BREZEEBERTPENEA

Z 25 F - BE#A50,000% T (:?
—=F :F) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ
28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. Ig A
Number
of shares Share capital
‘000 HK$'000
RHHE &S
T FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each FREMB0.055 T .2 Eidk
Authorised: EE
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013, R-_Z—=F—-A—B8"
1 January 2014 and 31 December 2014 =+ -"H=+—H"
—mE-—A—HRK
—mE+=-A=+—H 50,000,000 2,500,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR :
At 1 January 2013, 31 December 2013 and R-_TE—=%—HF—H -
1 January 2014 —T—=%+-_fA=+—H
k=ZF—HE—H—H 2,431,671 121,584
Issue of share upon placing (Note) PARR R B 1T R 10 (B 5%) 486,320 24,316
At 31 December 2014 RZZB-ME+=A=+—H 2,917,991 145,900

Note: On 21 October 2014, arrangements were made for a placement to
independent private investors of 486,320,000 share of HK$0.05 each in the
Company, at a price of HK$0.18 per share.

The proceeds were used as general working capital of the Group and
investment opportunities that may arise from time to time. These new
shares were issued under the general mandate granted to the directors of
the Company at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30
May 2014 and rank pari passu with other shares in issue in all respects.

i R —

mE+A=+—A8 - EEERHER
B LA E E L& AN A 7]486,320,000/%
SRREE0.05E TR - B ASAR0.187
775 o

SRR ERARE—REEESRIER
TRHREZRERGZED  BLHRMHIR
BR-ZZ-—NFRAA=+HZARRRTE
FRERTARAEE —RIEREHRTRE
H TR L HIER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The 2012 scheme

On 22 May 2012, the Company adopted the 2012 Scheme (the
“2012 Scheme”) under which the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion offer to any director of the Company
(including non-executive director), employee, suppliers, customers,
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, shareholders of any member
of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interests and any other group or classes of persons or entities
who have contributed to the development and growth of the
Group (“Participant”) to subscribe for shares in the Company in
accordance with the terms of the 2012 Scheme. The principal
purpose of the 2012 Scheme is to provide incentive or rewards for
the participant’s contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2012 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2012 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2012 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2012
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the directors of the
Company being not less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2012 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

29. B HERTE

—g—=Fita
R-ZTE——FRA-_+=-H  KAQAF
KW T ——_F58([ =T —ZF5
g Bt ARAREZRARNBMH
FRNARREE(BREINTES)
B - HER  BF - AASERMEH
7 - RS E MR SR 2 BT A L3k
B ANEBEERKE AR ZRERA
SEFEEREZEMNERARALRE
BrEREKRELDERM EREMAE
BISEER 2 AT ER([28EE]) R
ERERE  UREBE-ZZF——F:8l 2%
RRBARRE 2] - ZF——F518
ZEFEZBMERAE S RE 2 EE AR
SEELER °

ARE—F— —F 8 R AR RHERH
fl B A AT &I T IR 2 PR A R A i JE
1T Al e AT Z BN 488K - TSHRB
R — T~ —_F B AHAR R ET
BRAZ10%  HEEARBRREN
BUERIBRSN - R > ARB-F——F
AP 8 R AR D AU E A R AR 81
BB FITEMARITEZ A BRERET
EEARERETZRNRSHE - X
BEBBARBNEFDETRAZ30% °

RIE-T—_FHEIRL 2 BEER D
ZRBEAR/ARBESEE B
FRERAT=EPREE + ()©RERHE
AH(AREER)EBXXMEARER
FRTERA R R D 2 W E ¢ ()RR
ERHDBEMMAERS B ERZAER
BERARARRBA 2 FHWRHE :
(i) fn 2 EIME °

AT —F — —Ft 8l AR BRI E
b BB A At &R T T E A 2 BB R &
TTEMBRIT R AT RITZ A - T
FHEBEEITRNZ1% -
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29.

BRI

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2012 scheme (Continued)

The 2012 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2012 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2012 Scheme to 21
May 2022, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2012 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2012 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2012 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2012 Scheme was 243,000,000 (2013: nil), representing 8.33%
(2013: nil) of the shares of the Company in issue at the end of
reporting period.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

29, B R AE B )

“E-—F58um

ZE - FErEWES A E A R(E R
2T MARREERA2HMER

ERERFEHR - MREEHEREZ
SERFEHREREERETRBELE
E - BT eRL8EE 2 FEmiEL G
T ©

—E——FFEREREM T ——F5t
Rz —E-_—FRA-+—HI
TERN—EBR  WEGTEE—FR
LEERE - R T ——FEIFEER
B 2 AR T IR IR L BT IR AR
FUAITE - BT ——FH B 2§ HE
FraE A 5 EIIRE + B RIER °

BB — —FaralRE 2 EREER
BB EIRE21 RAREE o IR ZE MR
R AR ABBARRF MBI
ERERBRECRE -

R-ZE—WNE+_-_A=+—8 " B
—E——FFE ERERBREER
1716 Z B9 8 B 4243,000,000% (=
T—=%F: %) HERBEFHRERQ
AIE BTN Z28.33% (T —=4F :
)
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 29. B I REET &l )
The 2012 scheme (Continued) —E-—F58m
The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TRBEEHEZE - NER_ZT—=4F
options granted under the 2012 Scheme during the years ended 31 +-A=T—HItMEAFE ' B =2 =
December 2014 and 2013: — —FEHE AR IR AR
&) :
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding
at 1.1.2013, Granted Lapsed
Exercise 31.12.2013 and during during Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.1.2014 the year the year 31.12.2014
R=B-=
_H E .
“E-=f
t=A=1-A RZZ-RE
R=Z-0F tZA=1-H
RERH s &8 -B-BHKR ERRE EREX R
Director 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 03081 = 145,800,000 = 145,800,000
g3 —E-IE “Z-RE+-A=R%E
+-A=H “Z-n§+-AZH
Employee 3.11.2014 3.11.2014 t0 2.11.2015 030871 = 97,200,000 - 97,200,000
&2 “2-mE “E2-NE+-A=RZE
T—A=H “2-R%t+-AZH
Total - 243,000,000 - 243,000,000
3t

Exercisable at the end

of the year 243,000,000
RERTI
Weighted average exercise price - 0.30%7 - 03031
MEFAER
During the year ended 31 December 2014, options were granted %Zi_ Z—MFE+_A=+—HBILF
on 3 November 2014 (2013: nil). The estimated fair values of E o REENR-_ZFT—NF+—A=H
the options granted on the grant date, were approximately :%?—zi CE)ERE - AETREEAR
HK$3,475,000 and were determined by using the Binominal B 2 RIRERAFEL A3,475,000%
Model. TTRAZIEXEXMETE °
The significant inputs into the Binomial Model were as follows: THAZHEAEXENEA :
Adjusted share price at the grant date R B 2 RN ER HK$0.237
0.237%7T
Exercise price per share FRITERE HK$0.30
0.30/%7T
Expected volatility T8 BRI @ 36.88%
Expected dividend yield Ta EARR B e =
Expected life SELEESET 1 year
14F

Annual risk-free interest rate 42 [ i 4F 1) 2= 0.10%
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29.

BRI

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2012 scheme (Continued)

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatilities
of the share prices of the comparable companies over one year.

The aggregate fair values of the above granted options were
approximately HK$2,082,000 (2013: nil) and HK$ 1,393,000 (2013:
nil) which were to be recognised as share-based payments expenses
granted to directors and employees respectively for the year ended
31 December 2014 with a corresponding increase in share options
reserve.

The Binomial Model has been used to estimate the fair value of the
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the share options are based on the directors’ best estimate.
The value of an option varies with different variables of certain
subjective assumptions.

The 2002 Scheme

On 18 March 2002, the Company adopted the 2002 Scheme
(the “2002 Scheme"”) under which the board of directors of the
Company may at its discretion offer to any director of the Company
(including non-executive director), employee, suppliers, customers,
any person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group, shareholders of any member
of the Group or any entity in which the Group holds an equity
interests and any other group or classes of persons or entities
who have contributed to the development and growth of the
Group (“Participant”) to subscribe for shares in the Company in
accordance with the terms of the 2002 Scheme. The principal
purpose of the 2002 Scheme is to provide incentive or rewards for
the participant’s contributions to the Group.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the 2002 Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of
adoption of the 2002 Scheme, unless a refresh approval from the
shareholders of the Company has been obtained. However, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2002 Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the issued share capital of
the Company from time to time.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

29, B BT B0

—E-—FrtEle

FBHIREA—FALRABZREESE
R IBHETE ©

HE-_ZE-—NF+-_A=+—HIF
E - thHﬂEZ LN FEDBIA A
2,082,000 (=T —=F: T) R
1,393,000 L (= —=4F : T) + A
BOFBHRZRGBETESEREEHER -
BEARERE AR R D -

AN FEAZBEAEAREE - EF
BEET ARG BB A T ER A # H
=R - BREzZEERTRAANEZR
ERETEBRKRMTR -

—2T-F5E
R=ZBZ=£=A+/\A  ARARK
M-ZR_FHB((—FBR=Fi
Bl #it ARREERTHER
EAARAEE(BEFNTES) -
BE - (R - B MAKERAH
7% FBESREMRITREZ EAALH
HEE  AEEEAKE DA ZBRAA
SEBAHERE TARBURATE
B2 B R R PR AR 1 B 2 (T E Ao 48
RISBRIZ ATREE([28E])E
SR - WRE-FT B2
RRBADRZB - —FT=F: 1
2 3 2 B HER MR 2 Bk A
LEFLEH -

ARE T Fat 8l RA R RIEAHEH
AR RT 2118 T B 2 P R AR e
I{EMm A e AT 2 RN RS - TSR
R —T T —FE|BHARF BT
AR Z10% @ B EAR QAR REEF
HOERIBRSIN o AT - EIRBEZTE=F
AT 8] R AR B E A b B AR AT 813
B FITEmMARITE 2 16 BREET
FRAREETZROTSHE - aHT
BHBBRNARNFEETRALZ30% °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

The subscription price of the option shares granted under the 2002
Scheme shall be a price to be determined by the directors of the
Company being not less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
guotation sheet on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of grant; (iii) the nominal
value of a share.

The total number of shares issued and may be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to any individual under the 2002 Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company must not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue.

The 2002 Scheme does not contain any requirement of a minimum
period and the board of directors of the Company may in its
absolute discretion impose a minimum period requirement for
each option granted will be made by the board of directors of
the Company on a case by case basis and will not be made to the
advantage of the Participants.

The 2002 Scheme will remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing from the date of adoption of the 2002 Scheme to 17
March 2012, after which no further options will be granted but the
options which are granted during the life of the 2002 Scheme may
continue to be exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue
and the provisions of the 2002 Scheme shall in all other respects
remain in full force and effect in respect thereof.

Options granted under the 2002 Scheme must be taken up within
21 days of the date of grant. Upon acceptance of the option, the
grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the
grant.

At 31 December 2014, the number of shares in respect of which
options had been granted and remained outstanding under the
2002 Scheme was 112,824,078 (2013:118,442,807), representing
3.87% (2013: 4.87%) of the shares of the Company in issue at the
end of reporting period.

29, B AR AEE &)

—2E-FHEm

RE_TT_FEIRE 2 BRERN
Zu,u,ﬁ{“f/,\%$ RESEE B

BERUAT=FFREE : ()INRE
EIHH(/,J%AﬁEI)EH&%;&FE#E#&F%«%
PRTHRA R B 2 WHE ()R B
EROBAHAMAERS A ERMER
WERABARARN 2 FHRHE
(i) fn < EIME °

ARE-TT _F5t 8 R AR AU E

b B A AR T 81 R TERMEA Z A

TTEMEIT RATRERITZ BRI AR - T
BRE BTN Z1% -

T FEEINESE E A REER
Z%ﬁm MARREEREENIBR

SEFEHIR - LS MHEREZ
Fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁﬂi%%&?ﬂIﬁ/RE
E - BTgRLEEZFEMIEL S
T ©

—EER_FH AN ARM T F5
FRRAEE—T——F=A+tHL+
FRA—EAY  HRBIEE—FRH
BhE - ER T _FEEFENM
Rz BRI RBE BTN EET
TTE - BT F —F5H 81 2 GER
BEAMTEISRE + B RIEM -

BRE_TT_FFERE 2BREAR
BREBHENRARE - REMBK
B - ARABRARBMNIET
ERERBRIEZK(E -

RZZE—MF+—A=+—8 ' RBE=
ST - FET BB I MM ARTTE 2 B
Wk Z IR EE £112,824,078/% (=
T — =4 :118,442,8070%) - ¥E R
ARABRBRERBETRD 23.87%
(ZE—=F:487%) °
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
The 2002 Scheme (Continued)

No share options had been granted or exercised under the 2002
Scheme during the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013.
5,618,729 share options have been lapsed during the year ended
31 December 2014 (2013: nil).

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share
options granted under the 2002 Scheme during the years ended 31
December 2014 and 2013:

29. fE IR Rt 8l o)
8

—BE=

REE-_T—NF

=T BHLEFERLERE

/

F—E—=F+_A

EE —

FAEBELHTZERE  MREBE
—E-NE+_A=+T—HILEFE -

5,618,729 EREE KK (=Z

= f—

&)

TREBEARAR
hBEREREE
—=Ft+-A=t—

BT _FrEliR
—EEHER-F
B

Number of share options

BREHE
Outstanding
at 1.1.2013, Granted Lapsed
Exercise 31.12.2013 and during during Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.1.2014 the year the year 31.12.2014
R=%-=%
_H = E .
Z5-=f
+=A=t-A R=ZF-DF
R=Z-mf t=A=t-H
RAAH s k8 -B-REXE EREH EREX WK
Other eligible persons 5.10.2004 5.10.2004 t0 5.10.2014 0317 5,618,729 = (5,618,729) =
EfAERAL —2EME “ZEIMETARRR
TAEA —Z-RE+AEA
26.9.2005 26.9.2005 t0 25.9.2015 0.3695 67,649,498 - - 67,649,498
“EZRE —twﬁihﬂ +7B%
hAZTAH ZE-RFNAAZTRA
20.8.2007 20.8.2007 t0 20.8.2017 0.6275 27,194,648 - - 27,194,648
“ERLE “ZZHENAZTRE
NAZTH “Z—+F\A=TH
7.9.2007 7.9.2007 t07.9.2017 0.685 13,484,949 - - 13,484,949
“EELF “EELENALAZ
hAtH “Z-t§NALE
28.9.2007 28.9.2007 t0 28.9.2017 0.7385 4,494,983 - - 4,494,983
“ERLE “ERHENAZT/\RE
AB=t/H ZE-tEAAZTIA
Total 118,442,807 - (5,618,729) 112,824,078
@5t
Exercisable at the end
of the year 112,824,078
RELATE
Weighted average exercise price 047677 - 03174 0.484%TT

IEFATRE

x — = = —
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30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 31 October 2014, the Group disposed of 100% equity interest
in its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hamford Enterprises Limited which
was inactive throughout the year to an independent third party of
the Group.

30. HEMEB 2 A

RZZ—WF+A=+—0 KEEH
E—HREFETNER22EMBARH
REEEBRQAIA100%#E T —278
VURAEENE=T]

Consideration received BEARE
2014
HK$'000
—E—NF
Fi&T
Cash received Fri R & 550
Analysis of asset and liabilities over which KERHENEEREBED N
control was lost
2014
HK$'000
—T—F
FAT
Net assets disposed of HEFEE :
Non-current assets FEMBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RF 497
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HENBARSE
2014
HK$'000
—E—FE
FHT
Consideration received Fri (X & 550
Net assets disposed of HEFEE (497)
Gain on disposal & Y 53
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30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY (CONTINUED) 30. HLEMB LT @
Net cash inflow on disposal of a subsidiary HEMBATRIZBRER
2014
HK$'000
—E—FE
FHET
Consideration received in cash and cash NBeRkReFMHEELKE2RE
equivalents 550
e
31. OPERATING LEASES 31. EEHA
The Group as lessee rEBEEREEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for R¥EE A - $_§1E<$EEEG—F§|J,H)§|3EE
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating 2 AR REE SO 2 BERSEHS
leases which fall due as follows: ES T UNNE
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E-mEF —E—=F
TET FHT
Within one year —FR 9,625 1,608
In the second to fifth years inclusive FE_EERF(BIEEEME) 15,823 140
25,448 1,748
Operating lease payments represent rentals of the Group for its BN 7S I AEERER A=Y
office premises. Leases are negotiated for a range of one to five EYNZ2HE - KB HELY2HBE A
years and rentals are fixed for a range of one to four years (2013: —ZERE MR —ZENEZHABRN(Z
one to five years). T—=F:—Z=RF) HeLBEHE

;'_Eo
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

BRI

—FEFZHA=+—HIEFE

n\/-_r\

32. EAREKIE

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
—E—-mEF —=—=
FET FAET
Commitments contracted but not BRTAERNERE MR R B
provided for in respect of: ZRYE

— Leasehold improvement —HEMEREKAR 200 -

— Construction of property, plant and —% - BRERERELIR
equipment - 5
— Acquisition of an associate (Note i) — R A B (P =) 1,802 =
— Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note ii) NS D) - 970,000
2,002 970,005

Note:

On 20 August 2014, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement
with two independent third parties of the Group, pursuant to which, the
Company conditionally agreed to subscribe 10% interest of enlarged
registered capital of a company originally held by the two independent
third parties at cash consideration of approximately HK$1,891,000.
Included in the deposits and other receivables represented the refundable
investment deposits of approximately HK$89,000 paid for the proposed
acquisition. After completion of the agreement, the Company is entitled to
appoint one director out of 5 directors in the board of directors in target
company, which constitutes 20% of control over the target company. The
directors of the Company were of the opinion that the Group will have
significant influence over the target company which will be recognised as

an associate accordingly upon completion of acquisition.

FEE

RZZ—NENAZ+H  BREXABEK
HRENIESNKE1,891,0008 TRER B
PAN/NETETE - RVAE /NG L: OF - NG a i 5= N
10% M7 - ARBHEARBMEEBLE=F
I W E T - TREBERERS (BIERTT
17 3R H fth UL R IE ) 4989,00078 7T B - 1B
BB 2 - T - ARAREREE
ERZBBEAREZRESTFHES—F -
BIE BIZARI20% 2 15 6l o & W hE TR
& ARREFRR  AREKGHAER
AEEATENSHALRHE R
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32. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED) 32. EAAERE @)

Note (Continued)

(i) On 16 August 2013, the Company entered into an acquisition agreement
with Rich Planet Investments Limited, Noble Justice Holdings Limited
and Evergreen Lake International Limited (collectively the “Vendors”),
independent third parties of the Group, pursuant to which, the Company
conditionally agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Lead
Best Asia Company Limited (the “Proposed Acquisition”) at a consideration
of HK$1,020,000,000, which will be satisfied by cash, convertible
bonds, promissory notes and ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31
December 2013, amount of HK$50,000,000 included in the deposits
and other receivables represented the refundable investment deposits
paid to certain independent third parties for the Proposed Acquisition.
During the year ended 31 December 2014, the Proposed Acquisition was
terminated according a termination agreement entered and the deposits of
HK$50,000,000 was refunded accordingly.

33.RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group enrolled all Hong Kong employees in the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group
contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs, capped at HK$1,500
(HK$1,250 prior to June 2014) per month, to the MPF Scheme, in
which the contribution is matched by employees.

The Group’s subsidiaries operating in the PRC and Singapore
participate in defined contribution retirement schemes and CPF
Scheme organised by the relevant local government authorities
in the PRC and Singapore respectively. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a specified percentage of its payroll costs
to the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
schemes is to make the specified contributions under these
schemes.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of approximately HK$278,000
(2013: HK$190,000) represents contributions payable to these
schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period.

i (48)

(i) RZFT—Z=FNATE KARAFHEKXE
Z ¥8 37 % = 73 Rich Planet Investments
Limited * Noble Justice Holdings Limited
Evergreen Lake International Limited (%7
[ZEEH DI WEHE - Bt - A2AF]
A 151 [F = fE B Lead Best Asia Company
Limited 2 2 82 HTRA([REZ R EE
1| ]) - K f871,020,000,000% 7T * # AR
® - MRES AEERBRRAAREER
B - RZT—=F+=A=+—H 7R
BIERS (BREROTEFRLEMEKKRIEA)
50,000,000 8 TEN TETHEILE=T71F
BREUEEE A -BE_Z—NF+=A
=+ —HIEFE - BREFT2&IHE - 2
AU BIEAKIE © 50,000,000 T2 ZEE

RE e

3. R KB F 5T

AEBEAEERAEELHEBTESA
2l BESFHEZEERAEBEED
FIiEH - WAHAE ARES R AT -
NEBIZBAF IR A Z5% 5k FEE
Exm®A15008 T(R-_—M4F
NAZHEIA1,250870) [AERiES st 2
TER R - B{E 8 7 HEEEE -

ARE BN AP B RTINS R 2 B A )
7 7l 2 B8 dy mp B N D3R AR B 3 T DR A
BRFI &M 2 I E R TR KT EI P AR
BEtE - ZEWE A RARFMRA
ZHETE B o3 Lo AR KRR A ET &I 4E K
R HEH - REBERREFEET
2 ME—RERIELET &R E 2 3K -

R EmkEME2AEKERNER 2
HRPKAN#9278,0008 L (ZF — =4 -
190,000/ 70 ) FE AN & B AN 2 51 B f
JENZET 8 2| -
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 3. BELHKE

Apart from the balances disclosed in the Note 26, the Group also B BT 526 FT I B8 2 &5 84 9 - AN B IR

entered into the following transactions with related parties: BAREE 5] NEIRR 5 -

(a) During the year ended 31 December 2014, loan interest of @ MREBZE-_ZE—HWNFE+_A=+—
approximately HK$2,207,000 (2013: HK$2,552,000) was HBIEFEE AEER NS
payable by the Group to a non-controlling interest of a DA FEPE R R A B RRORLEAY
subsidiary. 2,207,000 L (=T — =

2,552,000/ 7T) °

(b) Compensation (?f key malnagement personnel b) FTBEEABHH
The remuneration of directors of the Company and other AAFBEERHEMIESEAS
members of key management during the year was as follows: RERZBMESHOT :

2014 2013

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-IOF —T—=fF

FET FHT

Short-term benefits 72 BRAE A 4,345 3,435
Share based payment LARRAD 32 £ 2,429 =
Post-employment benefits BB 4B T 4 51
6,815 3,486

The remuneration of directors of the Company and key executives RRAREZREBITRABEZMEHE

is determined by the Board upon recommendation of the ERENFHEEELER/MARRLET

remuneration committee having regards to the performance of L85 ERIZETE ©

individuals and market trends.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 35. REHIREE

On 12 January 2015, the conditions for open offer on the basis of RZZE—RF—HAT+=H - B acsk

one offer share for every two existing shares held on the record HE(BI=ZZE—WF+—H=1+/"B)8

date, i.e. 26 November 2014, were fulfilled. A total number of BEMKRRARNDEE —RESRN 2

1,458,995,422 offer shares, representing 309,807,964 offer shares BEEEITZ ARBEE Z IR EEEK -

subscribed by eligible shareholders and 1,149,187,458 taken up & $£1,458,995,422 BB ER 5 (FE
by the underwriter according to the underwriting agreement, were MNEERR R 2309,807,9640% %

issued accordingly on 15 January 2015. The net proceeds from the ERMDERBHEHERECHEBZEAE 2

open offer were approximately HK$212 million. Details of the open 1,149,187,458 R E ik ) B HHER

offer are set out in the announcement of the Company dated 14 —E-—RF—A+HHEET  ARABE

January 2015. Fr{S s/ I8)F 88 49/4212,000,000 T °

ARABEZFRBRHNARARIABAR=F
—HE—A+IEB 2R -
MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTION 36. TEHFHRERS

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the finance cost
related to a loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary of
HK$2,207,000 (2013: HK$2,552,000) was accrued and has not
been paid.

HE-_Z—MNE+_-_A=1+—HI=F
B BREKB AR RESEE R 2/
B AR#)2,207,0008 T ( —ZB— =4 :
2,552,000) B2 R ARLZ °
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36.

37.

MAJOR NON CASH TRANSACTION (continued)  36. T EHFEERZ (&)

During the year ended 31 December 2014, trade receivable of
approximately RMB12,150,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,270,000) was utilised to settle a loan from a non-controlling
interest of a subsidiary of approximately HK$15,270,000 (2013:
nil).

HE-_Z-—-Wm&EF+=-_F=+—H
HtEE ZBH5RBRUREBHARE
12,150,0007T (#HEF 1 #15,270,000/%
TC) FAES M B A Rl IEfE i s B R
#315,270,0008 L (ZE—=F : &) °

THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 37. KRB Z B AR R &

OF THE COMPANY

2014 2013
HK$*000 HK$'000
—E-lmEF —EF—=F
FET FHET

Non-current assets EmBEE
Plant and equipment R E K& 1,802 =
Available-for-sale investments ATHERE 22,851 =
Investments in subsidiaries REB AR Z&E 18 18
24,671 18

Current assets MENEE
Other receivables H fth MR8 753 50,439
Amounts due from subsidiaries (Note a) JE Wbt B A T B (Mizka) 227,504 48,068
Bank balances and cash RITEBERIRS 42,712 115,759
270,969 214,266
Current liabilities mEafE

Amounts due to subsidiaries (Note b) FET BB A7) kI8 (K 7Eb) - 2,500
Other payables H b FE AT 5RIE 9,204 9,070
9,204 11,570
Net current assets mENEEFE 261,765 202,696
286,436 202,714

Capital and reserves A& AR K (s
Share capital kN 145,900 121,584
Reserves (Note c) (B aEc) 140,536 81,130

286,436 202,714
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37.THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

e PR ERR MR

—mEFZA=1+—HILtFE

37. XD B Z BB AR AT )

Notes: FtzE -

a. The amounts are unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on a. ZHEAEER  BIEBZME RAREK
demand, other than an amount of approximately HK$58,906,000 (2013: 8 - Br—% B 8458,906,0008 L (=F
HK$78,497,000) (carrying interest at 1% over Hong Kong prime rate per — =4 :78,497,000/8 70 ) 2 RBE (R ES
annum), the remaining balances are interest-free. REREFR EF1EFE)IN  BEHAER

I=Ne

b.  The amounts are unsecured, non-trade in nature and repayable on demand b. ZFEAEER -  BIEBFHNUE  AREX
and interest-free. EEREE °
Reserves c B

Contributed Share Investment
Share surplus options revaluation  Accumulated
premium (Note) reserve reserves losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MABH
R EE (H&E) BRERE REEHER Y] @t
T T FHT FHT FHT FHT
At 1 January 2013 R-Z—=F—-F—H 278,145 48,311 31,132 - (162,296) 195,292
Loss and other comprehensive 18 R E
expense for the year 2EFX - - - - (114,162) (114,162)
At 31 December 2013 and R-E—-=F
1 January 2014 +TZA=t—-Hk
—T-m&—A-H 278,145 48,311 31,132 - (276,458) 81,130
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (10,953) (10,953)
Other comprehensive income  FREM2EKA
for the year - - - 5,851 - 5,851
Total comprehensive income  FRZ2EWA (i)
(expense) for the year ko) - - - 5,851 (10,953) (5,102)
Issue of ordinary share RERETLAR
upon placing 63,222 - - - - 63,222
Transaction cost attributable {73 & @A E(L 2
to issue of new RHEA
ordinary share (2,189) - - - - (2,189)
Recognition of equity-settled  LAREZSAEE I AR
share-based payments TR - - 3,475 - - 3,475
Share option lapsed B Sk - - (1,039) - 1,039 -
At 31 December 2014 RZE—NF
+ZA=1+—H 339,178 48,311 33,568 5,851 (286,372) 140,536
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37.THE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

€,

Reserves (Continued)
Note:

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange in 1996 over the nominal value of the

Company's shares issued in exchange thereof.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of contributed

surplus if:

(@) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as

they become due; or

(b)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

37. KRB Z BB AR R T &)

¢  fEGE)
P E -

ARABZBABBEARRABRMDR—ANR
R 95 2B 48 P i B B
RAZEMDAFEBBERZBRMETLZ

il—EHﬁ RFTER LT -

Z’SL\ ABRMEEEHE -

REBHRE-NN\—FRAREEERT)
RAZHABBARDIK - EARBTE
THER T BMABRREIRIRN SR

HHIK :

(a) ARTEN KNI E
HAE

(b) ARREEzIEREERIERNEE
B BTN R AR ) 4 (B BR

RERE -
ZHH o

Uﬂ“}

F“a
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 38. AR B FEM B A TFE
OF THE COMPANY

Nominal value of

Place of issued and fully
incorporation paid share capital/  Proportion of nominal value of issued share capital/
Name of principal subsidiaries and operation registered capital registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
ERELR BEARARRA
TEHBARER EXBE HE/ERER RAAMBERTRAEE ERERLA TERH
Directly Indirectly
¢4 &
2014 2013 2014 2013
% % % %
ZB-mE —Z2-=F ZB-[F C"T-=F
% % % %
Jet Air (Singapore) Private Singapore SGD500,000 - - 93 93 Air freight forwarding and
Limited brokers for airline and
shipping companies
RE (K) ERAR % 500,000% 7T ZE Rz
MBAREL
Jet-Air (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong HK$140,000,200 - - 100 100 Trading of securities and
trading of goods
BEZE (BE) BRRR  FA 140,000,007t AHEEREmEE
Global Star Corporate Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 100 - - Provision of administative
Management Limited Services to group
companies
REGRERARAT i 10,000/ 7 REBRTRETIRY
Jet Dispatch Limited United States of UsD3,000 - - 100 100 Freight forwarding agent
America
Jet Dispatch Limited H 3,000%7T SERE
Gujiao City Hongxiang Coal PRC RMB50,000,000 - - 55 55 Manufature and
Industry Co., Limited* sales of coal
ARMEFREARAA B ARE 2 R E R
50,000,0007c
Qianhai Honghu Teri PRC HK$50,000,000 - - 100 - Trading of goods
Technology (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd*
BB RRHR (R i 50,000,000/ 7 BmEE
BRAR

& The English name is for identification purpose only. & RXEHERSRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZ=—F—UF+=H=+—HIFZ

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

3. AN B FEMEBARFBE @)

PRA M A 7138 A1 E B A R e
I Z BRAF]

All subsidiaries are companies incorporated with limited liability in
the respective jurisdictions.

W 4 [ 4 A5 R E 4 A
GETR ) PNCER-2oiT e oF ol
EBES -

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at
the end of both years or at any time during both years.

ERMAIIEZ AR BB AR BARE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the

opinion of the directors of the Company, principally affected the
results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

FEZIMBAR - ARREZRR 12
HEA B R B Z FHFRHE R IRBRIT
£ o

RBERR - ARRAHMHAEEL
RBEAZWBARR - ZFMBRRZE

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The principal

activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as follows: EERBMANT
Principal activities Principal place of business Number of subsidiaries
TEEK TEEEE MEASHE
31 December 31 December
2014 2013
—E-pmF —T=F

+=B=+-8 +=A=+-A

Investment holding BVI/Hong Kong 10 7
KREER RBRUHE /BB

Inactive The PRC/BVI/Samoa/Hong Kong 5 6
RIS R RBRLHS BEDEE

15 13
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of
the Group that have material non-controlling interests.

Place of

incorporation and Portion of ownership

38. RAREEMBE AR

e PR ERR MR

—HEFETZA=+—HIEFE
H$IEE &)

TREJIEBERIER R 2 AEE
H2EMBRAZFE -

principal place of  and voting rights held by  Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of subsidiary business non-controlling interest ~ non-controlling interests controlling interests
S LR FERERFEAEER IREFERESR 2
WEARER S SELA A (&18) R FERES
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-mE “T-=F ZB-RFE —“T-=F ZB-MmF ~T-=F
TR THBT TR FHT
Suntech Group (Note) HK/PRC 45% 45% (10,801) (24,175) (20,991) (9,543)
FEEE () EE/
Individually immaterial subsidiaries (2) 10 (16) 7
with non-controlling interests
ERITER 2 K BAF
PG g
(10,803) (24,165) (21,007) (9,550)

Note: The Group is holding 55% equity interest in Suntech, in which Suntech is
holding 100% equity interest of Gujiao City Hongxiang Coal Industry Co.,
Limited.

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group's

MisE AEEZFEEEBESS%RE - MiEER
BRI ESH R M EEEEGRQF100% 0%
HE o

TR 7R 5 B 5 B X R0 SR B A Y 8

subsidiary that has non-controlling interests that are material to the B2 E R - 2 ZEE A A B A
Group, before intragroup eliminations: EEE KN IEIEATRERS
2014 2013
Suntech Group HK$'000 HK$'000
— —F-=F
fEEEm FHT FHT
Current assets mENE E 23,028 64,297
Non-current assets JEMENE B 16,645 35,817
Current liabilities RBAIE (86,321) (121,321)
Equity attributable to owners of the RRAEGES NEEER
Company (25,657) (11,664)
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RE S (20,991) (9,543)
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38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

—EF—H=1—HIFZE

3. A DNFFEMEBRARFBE @

2014 2013
Suntech Group (Continued) HKS$'000 HK$'000
—EF-NF —F—=

SEEEE(E) FHET THT
Revenue Wz 9,236 40,620
Other income Hipg A 1,897 2,571
Expenses 57 i (35,135) (96,913)
Loss attributable to owners of the RARER AEGEE

Company (13,201) (29,547)
Loss attributable to non-controlling JE AR R RS FE (L 1R

interests (10,801) (24,175)
Loss for the year FNEE (24,002) (53,722)
Other comprehensive (expense) income RARHEE AL EME2E (X

attributable to owners of the Company H)HA (792) 2,027
Other comprehensive (expense) income IS R R A e ()

attributable to non-controlling interests WA (647) 1,524
Other comprehensive (expense) income FREMER(EE)BA

for the year (1,439) 3,551
Total comprehensive expense for the year SR EEM2ME (S H) WA (25,441) (50,171)
Net cash inflow from operating activities A& EEABZIREFERA 29,268 12,464
Net cash inflow (outflow) from HEEB 2B FEAACRD)

investing activities 1,720 (12,340)
Net cash outflow from financing activities B & EBNFTE 2 & F5E 0 (31,912) (1,608)
Net cash outflow REFEmD (924) (1,484)
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For the year ended 31 December 2014 #Z=—F—F+=HA=+—HIFZ

39. CONTINGENCY

On 17 April 2013, the Company, as one of the respondents,
and certain of its former directors were served a petition (the
“Petition”) by the Securities and Futures Commission in relation to
certain past transactions of the Group. The hearing for preliminary
directions relating to the Petition was heard in the High Court on
31 July 2013. As set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 19 June 2014, pursuant to an order made by the High Court
on 9 May 2014, the parties attended the office of Deputy Clerk
of Court (Civil), High Court on 18 June 2014, at which a date for
the substantive hearing of the Petition has been set down by the
parties, and will be held from 2 September 2015 to 8 September
2015. Based on the opinion of the independent legal adviser of
the Company for 2013 and 2014, the directors of the Company
consider that the Petition does not have significant financial and
operating impact on the Group.

Details of the Petition are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 18 April 2013, 31 July 2013 and 19 June 2014.

39. S AEIE

RZZF—=FWA+LEE  ARA(F
RET-—RERAT)REETHEE
FUBBHF L EEBERZEEH
AEEETBEER %hmzf (2
Fl) BHEZ2FENR_T—=FLtA
=t— EEmwihEﬁém%ﬁ°%
ARABR-_FE—HFERNATABRZA
i RESFEER-_Z—NFREAN
BiEH 2L SR _F—HF KA
TNABHEER(RF)BIMERZR
THEEEFIEXRABTR T —AE
NAZRE-_ZT-—RFNANBER -
REARRBLAZBEERN T —=F
R—_Z—NENER  ARFREZRR
EFRUAEE B RN BENE
j(ﬂf 28 o

BEEBZHABERNARRBHR=F
—=FWmA+N\R - —_FE—=%F+A
=t+—BRZZE-OFAATABRZA
iR o
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HFEPBEHBRE

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t—-BHILEE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-mE %= ZZ-=—f ZT—F Z=ZT-ITF
THER FAT TAT FAT FTAT
Revenue W zs 276,276 47,739 102,941 34,044 7,860
(Loss) Profit before tax R AT (B )T (28,010) (103,326) 9,161 6,852 (55,282)
Income tax (expense) credit FBHE)ER (331) 2,999 (6,604) (1,231) (10)
(Loss) Profit for the year FR(EE) T (28,341) (100,327) 2,557 5,621 (55,292)
(Loss) Profit for the year FRN(E518)m A
attributable to: BT S IE R :
Owners for the Company RARER A (17,538)  (76,162) (2,932) 5,896 (55,255)
Non-controlling interests JEIE PR RERS (10,803) (24,165) 5,489 (275) (37)
(Loss) Profit for the year ER(ER) SN (28,341) (100,327) 2,557 5,621 (55,292)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES LBEREE
As at 31 December
W+=ZH=+—-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
“E-Nf =—Z-=f ZZ-—=f ZT—F Z=ZIZ-ITF
FTEx FAT FAT FAT FAL
Total assets BERE 395,823 346,758 447,765 466,097 335,183
Total liabilities BEQH (72,277) (86,943) (90,949) (112,522) (20,442)
323,546 259,815 356,816 353,575 314,741
Equity attributable to Owners of ZNA B A A FE(L 344,553 269,365 343,725 346,197 314,768
the Company P
Non-controlling interests JEIE AR RERS (21,007) (9,550) 13,091 7,378 (27)
323,546 259,815 356,816 353,575 314,741




~
CHINA BEST

E:: o=
CHINA BEST GROUP HOLDING LIMITED

G R R PN



	Cover

	Contents
	Corporate Information
	Chairman’s Message
	Management Discussion and Analysis
	Corporate Governance Report
	Biographical Details of Directors
	Directors’ Report
	Independent Auditor’s Report
	Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

	Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
	Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
	Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
	Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
	Five-Year Financial Summary
	Back Cover


